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The information in this prospectus is not complete and may be changed. We may not offer these securities until the registration
statement filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission is effective. This prospectus is not an offer to sell these securities and it is
not soliciting an offer to buy these securities in any jurisdiction where the offer or sale is not permitted.

SUBJECT TO COMPLETION, DATED MARCH 12, 2010

PRELIMINARY PROSPECTUS

KKR & Co. L.P.

204,902,226 Common Units

Representing Limited Partner Interests

We are registering the distribution of 204,902,226 common units representing limited partner interests in our business to holders of
common units of KKR & Co. (Guernsey) L.P. and, concurrently with such distribution, listing our common units on the New York Stock
Exchange under the symbol "KKR." We refer to KKR & Co. (Guernsey) L.P. as "KKR Guernsey," to the distribution of our common units to
holders of KKR Guernsey units as the "In-Kind Distribution" and to the listing of our common units on the New York Stock Exchange as the
"U.S. Listing."

Pursuant to the In-Kind Distribution, each KKR Guernsey unitholder will receive one of our common units for each unit of KKR Guernsey
held when the U.S. Listing becomes effective. In the aggregate, the common units that will be distributed to holders of KKR Guernsey units
represent a 30% interest in our business. The remaining 70% interest in our business is held by our principals, who beneficially own 478,105,194
common units through KKR Holdings L.P. On a fully diluted basis, we have an aggregate of 683,007,420 common units outstanding.

KKR Guernsey is a Guernsey limited partnership whose common units are currently listed on Euronext Amsterdam by NYSE Euronext, the
regulated market of Euronext Amsterdam N.V., which we refer to as Euronext Amsterdam. The last reported sale price of KKR Guernsey units
on March 11, 2010 was $11.12 per unit. Because the assets of KKR Guernsey consist solely of its limited partner interests in our business, the
In-Kind Distribution will result in a dissolution of KKR Guernsey and a delisting of its units from Euronext Amsterdam. To preserve a trading
market for interests in our business, the In-Kind Distribution is conditioned upon our common units being approved for listing on the New York
Stock Exchange subject to official notice of issuance.

KKR Guernsey unitholders will not be required to pay any consideration for the common units they receive in the In-Kind
Distribution. No vote or further action of KKR Guernsey unitholders is required in connection with the registration, listing or
distribution of our common units. We are not asking you for a proxy and request that you do not send us a proxy.

In reviewing this prospectus, you should carefully consider the matters described under the caption ''Risk Factors'' beginning on
page 16 of this prospectus. These risks include but are not limited to the following:

We are managed by a general partner, which we refer to as our Managing Partner, and do not have our own directors or
officers. Our unitholders will have only limited voting rights and will have no right to elect or remove our Managing Partner
or its directors or officers. Through KKR Holdings, our principals generally have sufficient voting power to determine the

outcome of any matters that may be submitted for a vote of our unitholders.
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We believe that we will be treated as a partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes and you therefore will be required to
take into account your allocable share of items of our income, gain, loss and deduction in computing your U.S. federal
income tax liability. You may not receive sufficient cash distributions to pay your allocable share of our net taxable income

or even the tax liability that results from that income.

Various forms of legislation have been introduced that could, if enacted, preclude us from qualifying as a partnership for
U.S. federal income tax purposes under the rules governing publicly traded partnerships and could require that we be treated
as a corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes. If the above or any similar legislation or regulation were to be enacted
and apply to us, we would incur a material increase in our tax liability that could result in a reduction in the value of our
common units.

Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any other regulatory body has approved or disapproved these securities or passed
upon the accuracy or adequacy of this prospectus. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.

The date of this prospectus is ,2010.
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Our Assets Under Management(*)

)
Assets under management are presented pro forma for the Combination Transaction (as defined herein) and, therefore, exclude the net
asset value of KKR Guernsey and its commitments to our investment funds.
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You should rely only on the information contained in this prospectus or any free writing prospectus. We have not authorized anyone to
provide you with additional or different information. The information in this prospectus is accurate only as of the date of this prospectus,
regardless of the time of delivery of this prospectus or any distribution of our common units.

This prospectus has been prepared using a number of conventions, which you should consider when reading the information contained
herein. Unless the context suggests otherwise, (i) references to "KKR," "we," "us," "our" and "our partnership" refer to KKR & Co. L.P. and its
subsidiaries; (ii) references to "our Managing Partner" are to KKR Management LLC, which acts as our general partner; (iii) references to "KKR
Guernsey" are to KKR & Co. (Guernsey) L.P. (f/k/a KKR Private Equity Investors, L.P. or "KPE"); (iv) references to the "Combined Business"
of KKR refer to the business of KKR that resulted from the combination of its asset management business with the assets and liabilities of KKR
Guernsey on October 1, 2009; (v) references to the "KKR Group Partnerships" are to KKR Management Holdings L.P. and KKR Fund
Holdings L.P., which became holding companies for the Combined Business on October 1, 2009; and (vi) references to the "KPE Investment
Partnership" are to KKR PEI Investments, L.P., a lower tier partnership through which KPE made all of its investments. Unless otherwise

indicated, references to equity interests in the Combined Business,
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or to percentage interests in the Combined Business, reflect the aggregate equity of the KKR Group Partnerships and are net of amounts that
have been allocated to our principals in respect of the carried interest from the Combined Business as part of our "carry pool" and certain
minority interests in our business that were not acquired by the KKR Group Partnerships in connection with our reorganization into a holding
company structure and our acquisition of the assets and liabilities of KKR Guernsey. See "Organizational Structure" and "Management's
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations Impact of the Transactions." References to our "principals" are to our
senior executives and operating consultants who hold interests in the Combined Business through KKR Holdings and references to our "senior
principals" are to principals who also hold interests in our Managing Partner entitling them to vote for the election of its directors.

On October 1, 2009, we completed the acquisition of all of the assets and liabilities of KKR Guernsey and, in connection with such
acquisition, completed a series of transactions pursuant to which the business of KKR was reorganized into a holding company structure. We
refer to the acquisition of the assets and liabilities of KKR Guernsey as the "Combination Transaction," to our reorganization into a holding
company structure as the "Reorganization Transactions" and to the Combination Transaction and the Reorganization Transactions collectively as
the "Transactions." Our financial information for periods prior to the Transactions is based on a group, for accounting purposes, of certain
combined and consolidated entities under the common control of our senior principals and under the common ownership of our principals and
certain other individuals who have been involved in our business, and our financial information for periods subsequent to the Transactions is
based on a group, for accounting purposes, consisting of KKR & Co. L.P. and its consolidated subsidiaries.

KKR Group Holdings L.P., which we refer to as "Group Holdings," is the parent of our consolidated accounting group for periods
subsequent to October 1, 2009 and is the entity through which KKR Guernsey currently holds its interests in the KKR Group Partnerships.
Group Holdings serves, directly and indirectly, as the general partner of the KKR Group Partnerships. Our Managing Partner serves as the
ultimate general partner of Group Holdings and the KKR Group Partnerships. KKR Guernsey, through its interest in Group Holdings, holds 30%
of the outstanding KKR Group Partnership Units. See "Summary The U.S. Listing KKR Group Partnership Units."

In this prospectus, the terms "assets under management” or "TAUM" represent the assets from which we are entitled to receive fee income or
a carried interest and general partner capital. We calculate the amount of AUM as of any date as the sum of: (i) the fair value of the investments
of our investment funds plus uncalled capital commitments from these funds; (ii) the fair value of investments in our co-investment vehicles;
(iii) the net asset value of certain of our fixed income products; and (iv) the value of outstanding structured finance vehicles. You should note
that our calculation of AUM may differ from the calculations of other asset managers and, as a result, our measurements of AUM may not be
comparable to similar measures presented by other asset managers. Our definition of AUM is not based on any definition of AUM that is set
forth in the agreements governing the investment funds, vehicles or accounts that we manage.

In this prospectus, the terms "fee paying assets under management" or "FPAUM" represent only those assets under management from
which we receive fees. FPAUM is the sum of all of the individual fee bases that are used to calculate our fees and differs from AUM in the
following respects: (i) assets from which we do not receive a fee are excluded (i.e., assets with respect to which we receive only carried interest);
and (ii) certain assets, primarily in our private equity funds, are reflected based on capital commitments and invested capital as opposed to fair
value because fees are not impacted by changes in the fair value of underlying investments.

Unless otherwise indicated, references in this prospectus to our fully diluted common units outstanding, or to our common units outstanding
on a fully diluted basis, reflect both actual common units outstanding as well as common units into which KKR Group Partnership Units not
held by us are exchangeable pursuant to the terms of the exchange agreement described in this prospectus, but do not reflect common units
available for issuance pursuant to our Equity Incentive Plan.
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CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This prospectus contains forward-looking statements, which reflect our current views with respect to, among other things, our operations
and financial performance. You can identify these forward-looking statements by the use of words such as "outlook," "believe," "expect,"
"potential," "continue," "may," "should," "seek," "approximately," "predict," "intend," "will," "plan," "estimate," "anticipate" or the negative
version of these words or other comparable words. Forward-looking statements are subject to various risks and uncertainties. Accordingly, there
are or will be important factors that could cause actual outcomes or results to differ materially from those indicated in these statements. These
factors include, but are not limited to, those described under "Risk Factors" and "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations". These factors should not be construed as exhaustive and should be read in conjunction with the other cautionary
statements that are included in this prospectus. We do not undertake any obligation to publicly update or review any forward-looking statement,
whether as a result of new information, future developments or otherwise.

non non non non

MARKET AND INDUSTRY DATA

This prospectus includes market and industry data and forecasts that we have derived from independent reports, publicly available
information, various industry publications, other published industry sources and internal data and estimates. Independent reports, industry
publications and other published industry sources generally indicate that the information contained therein was obtained from sources believed
to be reliable. Internal data and estimates are based upon information obtained from investors in our funds, trade and business organizations and
other contacts in the markets in which we operate and our understanding of industry conditions. Although we believe that such information is
reliable, we have not had this information verified by any independent sources.

il
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QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS ABOUT THE U.S. LISTING

The questions and answers below highlight only selected information with respect to the U.S. Listing. They may not contain all of the

information that may be important to you. You should read carefully this entire prospectus to fully understand the U.S. Listing.

Q:

What is the U.S. Listing?

We have elected to list our common units on the New York Stock Exchange. In connection with such listing, (i) KKR Guernsey will
contribute its assets to us in return for our NYSE-listed common units, (ii) KKR Guernsey will make an in-kind distribution of our
common units to its unitholders and will dissolve and (iii) each KKR Guernsey unit will cease to be traded on Euronext Amsterdam
and will be cancelled.

What do I have to do to participate in the U.S. Listing and In-Kind Distribution?

No action is required on your part. KKR Guernsey unitholders are not required to pay any cash or deliver any other consideration to us
to receive our common units distributable to them in connection with the U.S. Listing.

What will I receive in connection with the U.S. Listing?

Each KKR Guernsey unitholder will receive one of our common units for each unit of KKR Guernsey held upon the effectiveness of
the U.S. Listing. Your proportionate interest in our business will not change.

What is being distributed in connection with the U.S. Listing?

204,902,226 of our common units will be distributed in connection with the U.S. Listing. In the aggregate, the common units that will
be distributed to holders of KKR Guernsey units represent a 30% interest in our business. The remaining 70% interest in our business
is held by our principals, who beneficially own 478,105,194 common units through KKR Holdings L.P. On a fully diluted basis, we
have an aggregate of 683,007,420 common units outstanding.

When will the In-Kind Distribution occur?

The In-Kind Distribution will occur concurrently with the listing of our common units on the New York Stock Exchange.

If I sell my KKR Guernsey units on or before the U.S. Listing, am I still entitled to receive common units distributable with respect
to the KKR Guernsey units I sold?

If you have sold KKR Guernsey units on or prior to the U.S. Listing but your transaction has not been settled on or prior to the U.S.
Listing, your transaction will be settled in our common units. If, however, you sold KKR Guernsey units on or prior to the U.S. Listing
and your transaction has settled prior to the U.S. Listing, the purchaser of the KKR Guernsey units will be entitled to receive our
common units distributable with respect to the KKR Guernsey units you sold.

How will KKR Guernsey distribute our common units?

The distribution of our common units and cancellation of KKR Guernsey units will occur automatically through the clearing systems
of your bank or broker.
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What are the U.S. Federal income tax consequences to me of the U.S. Listing and Distribution?

See "Material U.S. Federal Tax Considerations" in this prospectus.

10
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Q:

Are there risks associated with owning our common units?

A:
We are subject to both general and specific risks and uncertainties relating to our business. Our business is also subject to risks relating
to the U.S. Listing. Following the U.S. Listing, we will also be subject to risks relating to being a publicly traded company in the
United States. Accordingly, you should read carefully the information set forth in the section entitled "Risk Factors."

11
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SUMMARY

This summary highlights information contained elsewhere in this prospectus and does not contain all the information you should consider
in connection with your receipt of our common units. You should read this entire prospectus carefully, including the section entitled "Risk
Factors" and the historical financial statements and related notes included elsewhere herein.

Overview
KKR

Led by Henry Kravis and George Roberts, we are a global alternative asset manager with $52.2 billion in AUM as of December 31, 2009
and a 34-year history of leadership, innovation and investment excellence. When our founders started our firm in 1976, they established the
principles that guide our business approach today, including a patient and disciplined investment process; the alignment of our interests with
those of our investors, portfolio companies and other stakeholders; and a focus on attracting world-class talent.

Our business offers a broad range of asset management services to our investors and provides capital markets services to our firm, our
portfolio companies and our clients. Throughout our history, we have consistently been a leader in the private equity industry, having completed
more than 170 private equity investments with a total transaction value in excess of $425 billion. In recent years, we have grown our firm by
expanding our geographical presence and building businesses in new areas, such as fixed income and capital markets. Our new efforts build on
our core principles, leverage synergies in our business, and allow us to capitalize on a broader range of opportunities that we source.
Additionally, we have increased our focus on servicing our existing investors and have invested meaningfully in developing relationships with
new investors.

With over 600 people, we conduct our business through 14 offices on four continents, providing us with a pre-eminent global platform for
sourcing transactions, raising capital and carrying out capital markets activities. We have grown our AUM significantly, from $15.1 billion as of
December 31, 2004 to $52.2 billion as of December 31, 2009, representing a compounded annual growth rate of 28.1%. Our growth has been
driven by value that we have created through our operationally focused investment approach, the expansion of our existing businesses, our entry
into new lines of business, innovation in the products that we offer investors, an increased focus on providing tailored solutions to our clients
and the integration of capital markets distribution activities.

On October 1, 2009, we completed our acquisition of all of the assets and liabilities of KPE and our Combined Business became listed on
Euronext Amsterdam. This acquisition, which we refer to as the Combination Transaction, has provided us with a significant source of
permanent capital to further grow our business and an equity currency that we may use to attract, retain and incentivize our employees and to
fund opportunistic acquisitions. The Combination Transaction did not involve the payment of any cash consideration or involve an offering of
any newly issued securities to the public, and our principals did not sell any interests in our Combined Business. Following the Combination
Transaction, we operate our business through three business segments: Private Markets; Public Markets; and Capital Markets and Principal
Activities.

Business Segments
Private Markets

Our Private Markets segment is comprised of our global private equity business, which manages and sponsors a group of investment funds
and vehicles that invest capital for long-term appreciation, either through controlling ownership of a company or strategic minority positions.
These funds and vehicles build on our sourcing advantage and the strong industry knowledge, operating expertise and

12
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regulatory and stakeholder management skills of our professionals, operating consultants and senior advisors to identify attractive investment
opportunities and create and realize value for investors.

From our inception through December 31, 2009, we have raised 15 investment funds with approximately $59.7 billion of capital
commitments and have sponsored a number of fee and carry paying co-investment structures that allow us to commit additional capital to
transactions. As of December 31, 2009, the segment had $38.8 billion of AUM and its actively investing funds included geographically
differentiated investment funds and vehicles with over $13.7 billion of uncalled commitments, providing a significant source of capital that may
be deployed globally.

Public Markets

Our Public Markets segment is comprised primarily of our fixed income businesses which manage capital in liquid credit strategies, such as
leveraged loans and high yield bonds, and less liquid credit products, such as mezzanine debt and capital solutions investments. Our capital
solutions effort focuses on special situations investing, including rescue financing, distressed investing, debtor-in-possession financing and exit
financing.

We execute these investment strategies through a specialty finance company and a number of investment funds, structured finance vehicles
and separately managed accounts. These funds, vehicles and accounts leverage our global investment platform, experienced investment
professionals and ability to adapt our investment strategies to different market conditions to capitalize on investment opportunities that may arise
at every level of the capital structure.

As of December 31, 2009, the segment had $13.4 billion of AUM, including $0.9 billion of assets managed in a publicly traded specialty
finance company, $8.1 billion of assets managed in structured finance vehicles and $4.4 billion of assets managed in other types of investment
vehicles and separately managed accounts. This AUM includes $0.8 billion of uncalled commitments to this segment.

Capital Markets and Principal Activities

Our Capital Markets and Principal Activities segment combines the assets we acquired in the Combination Transaction with our global
capital markets business. Our capital markets business supports our firm, our portfolio companies and our clients by providing tailored capital
markets advice and developing and implementing both traditional and non-traditional capital solutions for investments and companies seeking
financing. Our capital markets services include arranging debt and equity financing for transactions, placing and underwriting securities
offerings, structuring new investment products and providing capital markets services. To allow us to carry out these activities, we are registered
or authorized to carry out certain broker-dealer activities in various countries in North America, Europe and Asia.

The assets that we acquired in the Combination Transaction have provided us with a significant source of capital to further grow and
expand our business, increase our participation in our existing portfolio of businesses and further align our interests with those of our investors
and other stakeholders. We believe that the market experience and skills of our capital markets professionals and the investment expertise of
professionals in our Private Markets and Public Markets segments will allow us to continue to grow and diversify this asset base over time.

Strengths

Over our history, we have developed a business approach that centers around three key principles: (i) adhere to a patient and disciplined
investment process; (ii) align our interests with those of our investors and other stakeholders; and (iii) attract world-class talent for our firm and
portfolio companies. Based on these principles, we have developed a number of strengths that we believe

4
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differentiate us as an alternative asset manager and provide additional competitive advantages that can be leveraged to grow our business and
create value. These include:

Firm Culture and People

When our founders started our firm in 1976, leveraged buyouts were a novel form of corporate finance. With no financial services firm to
use as a model and with little interest in copying an existing formula, our founders sought to build a firm based on principles and values that
would provide a proper institutional foundation for years to come. We believe that our success and industry leadership has been largely
attributable to the culture of our firm and the values that we live by. We believe that our experienced and talented people, who represent our
culture and values, have been the key to our success and growth. These values and our "one firm" culture will not change as a result of the U.S.
Listing.

Leading Brand Name

The "KKR" name is associated with: experience and success in private equity transactions worldwide; a focus on operational value creation
in portfolio companies; a strong investor base; a global network of leading business relationships; a reputation for integrity and fair dealing;
creativity and innovation; and superior investment performance. The strength of this brand helps us attract world-class talent, raise capital and
obtain access to investment opportunities. It has also provided the firm with a foundation to expand and diversify into new business lines. We
intend to leverage the strength of our brand as we continue to grow our businesses.

Global Presence and Integrated One Firm Approach

We are a global firm. Although our operations span multiple continents and business lines, we have a common culture and are focused on
sharing knowledge, resources and best practices throughout our offices and across asset classes. With offices in 14 major cities on four
continents, we have created an integrated global platform for sourcing and making investments in multiple asset classes and throughout the
capital structure. Our global and diversified operations are supported by extensive local market knowledge, which allows us to deploy capital
across a number of geographical markets and raise capital from a broad base of investors globally.

Our investment processes are overseen by investment committees that operate globally and a portfolio management committee monitors
our private equity investments. Where appropriate, investment professionals across our various businesses work together and with our capital
markets team to source and execute investment opportunities. We believe that operating as an integrated firm enhances the growth and stability
of our business and helps optimize the decisions we make across asset classes and geographies.

Sourcing Advantage

We believe that we have a competitive advantage for sourcing new investment opportunities as a result of our internal deal generation
strategies, industry expertise and global network. Across our businesses, our investment professionals are organized into industry groups and
work closely with our operating consultants and senior advisors to identify attractive businesses. These teams conduct their own primary
research, develop views on industry themes and trends, and identify companies in which we may want to invest.

We also maintain relationships with leading executives from major companies, commercial and investment banks and other investment and
advisory institutions. Through our industry focus and global network, we often are able to obtain exclusive or limited access to investments that
we identify. Our reputation as a patient and long-term investor also makes us an attractive source of capital for
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companies and, through our relationships with major financial institutions, we generate additional transaction opportunities.
Distinguished Track Record Across Economic Cycles

We have successfully employed our patient and disciplined investment process through all types of economic and financial conditions,
developing a track record that distinguishes the firm. From our inception through December 31, 2009, our private equity funds with at least
36 months of investment activity generated a cumulative gross IRR of 25.8%, compared to the 11.5% gross IRR achieved by the S&P 500 Index
over the same period. Additionally, we established our fixed income business in 2004 and, despite difficult market conditions, the returns in each
of our core strategies since inception have outperformed relevant benchmarks.

Sizeable Long-Term Capital Base

As of December 31, 2009, we had $52.2 billion of AUM, making us one of the largest independent alternative asset managers in the world.
Our private equity funds and certain of our co-investment vehicles receive capital commitments from investors that may be called for during an
investment period that typically lasts for six years and may remain invested for up to approximately 12 years. In addition, our specialty finance
company as well as our structured finance vehicles include capital that has either long-dated or no maturities. As of December 31, 2009,
approximately 93%, or $48.6 billion, of our AUM had a contractual life at inception of at least 10 years, which has provided a stable source of
long-term capital for our business.

Long-Standing Investor Relationships

We have established strong relationships with our investors, which has allowed us to raise significant amounts of capital for investment
across a broad range of asset classes. We have a diversified group of investors, including some of the largest public and private pension plans,
global financial institutions, university endowments and other institutional and public market investors. Many of these investors have invested
with us for decades in various products that we have sponsored. We continue to develop relationships with new significant investors worldwide,
providing an additional source of capital for our investment vehicles. We believe that the strength, breadth, duration and diversity of our investor
relationships provides us with a significant advantage for raising capital from existing and new sources and will help us continue to grow our
business.

Alignment of Interests

Since our inception, one of our fundamental philosophies has been to align the interests of the firm and our people with the interests of our
investors, portfolio companies and other stakeholders. We achieve this by putting our own capital behind our ideas. We and our principals have
over $6.5 billion invested in or committed to our own funds and portfolio companies, including $4.2 billion funded through our balance sheet,
$1.3 billion of additional commitments to investment funds and $1.0 billion in personal investments.

Creativity and Innovation

We pioneered the development of the leveraged buyout and have worked throughout our history to create new and innovative structures for
both raising capital and making investments. Our history of innovation includes establishing permanent capital vehicles for our Public Markets
and Private Markets segments and developing new capital markets and distribution capabilities in North America, Europe and Asia.
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Growth Strategy

We intend to grow our business and create value for our common unitholders by:

generating superior returns on assets that we manage and our principal assets;

growing our assets under management;

entering new businesses and creating new products that leverage our core competencies;

continuing our expansion into new geographies with respect to both investing and raising capital;

expanding our capital markets business; and

using our principal assets to grow and invest in our business.
Why We are Undertaking the U.S. Listing

Our decision to pursue a U.S. Listing is based on our conclusion that the U.S. Listing will benefit KKR Guernsey unitholders over the long
term. We view the U.S. Listing as part of our continued commitment to KKR Guernsey's unitholders, who supported us in the initial formation
of KPE and its recent combination with our business. We believe that the U.S. Listing offers the opportunity to build our firm by providing new
opportunities to invest in our business, attract and incentivize world-class people, and enhance the diversity, scale and capital of our business.

The Combination Transaction and Reorganization Transactions

On October 1, 2009, we completed the acquisition of all of the assets and liabilities of KKR Guernsey and, in connection with such
acquisition, completed a series of transactions pursuant to which the business of KKR was reorganized into a holding company structure. We
refer to these transactions as the "Transactions." Following the Transactions, KKR Guernsey holds a 30% economic interest in our Combined
Business through Group Holdings, and our principals hold a 70% economic interest in our Combined Business through KKR Holdings. Our
senior principals also control us through their control of our Managing Partner. For a description of the Combination Transaction, the
Reorganization Transactions and the components of our business owned by the KKR Group Partnerships, see "Organizational Structure."

Risks Related to Our Common Units

Holding our common units involves substantial risks and uncertainties. Some of the more significant challenges and risks related to our
common units include:

our business is materially affected by conditions in the financial markets and economic conditions, and recent disruptions in
the global financial markets, including considerable declines in the valuations of debt and equity securities, have negatively
impacted our financial performance, increased the cost of financing leveraged buyout transactions and limited the

availability of that financing;

we are dependent on our principals, including our founders and other key personnel;

our net income and cash flow are volatile;
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any underperformance of our investments could adversely affect our ability to maintain or grow our AUM;

our unitholders have limited ability to influence decisions regarding our business;

our business is subject to extensive regulation and scrutiny, which may make our business more difficult to operate;
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the valuation methodologies for certain assets in our funds are subject to significant management judgment;

our organizational structure may give rise to the potential for conflicts of interest among our Managing Partner, its affiliates
and us;

many of our funds focus on illiquid investments;

there is no established trading market for our common units in the United States;

we may be subject to substantial litigation and as a result incur significant liabilities and suffer damage to our professional
reputation;

you may be required to make tax payments in connection with your ownership of our common units in excess of the cash
distributions you receive in any specific year;

our emphasis on private equity investments, which are among the largest in the industry, involve particular risks and
uncertainties; and

our investments in companies that are based outside of the United States present potentially greater risks than similar
investments in the United States.

In addition, legislation has been introduced that would tax as a corporation a publicly traded partnership, such as us, that directly or
indirectly derives income from investment advisor or asset management services. Separately, legislation has been passed in the U.S. House of
Representatives that would generally (i) treat carried interest as non-qualifying income under the tax rules applicable to publicly traded
partnerships, which could preclude us from qualifying as a partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes, and (ii) tax carried interest as
ordinary income for U.S. federal income taxes, which could require to hold our interest in carried interest through taxable subsidiary
corporations. If any of these pieces of legislation or any similar legislation or regulation were to be enacted and apply to us, we would incur a
material increase in our tax liability, which could result in a reduction in the value of our common units. Please see "Risk Factors" for a
discussion of these and additional factors related to our common units.
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The U.S. Listing

KKR & Co. L.P., a Delaware limited partnership.
On February 24, 2010, we delivered to KKR Guernsey a notice of our intention to exercise a
right to seek a listing of our common units on the New York Stock Exchange and to have KKR
Guernsey make an in-kind distribution of our common units to holders of KKR Guernsey units
upon completion of the U.S. Listing. Pursuant to the In-Kind Distribution, each KKR Guernsey
unitholder will receive one of our common units for each KKR Guernsey unit when the U.S.
Listing becomes effective. Because the assets of KKR Guernsey consist solely of its interests in
our business, the In-Kind Distribution will result in the dissolution of KKR Guernsey and a
delisting of its units from Euronext Amsterdam. To preserve a trading market for interests in
our business, the In-Kind Distribution is conditioned upon our common units being approved
for listing on the New York Stock Exchange subject to official notice of issuance.
Our common units represent limited partner interests in our partnership. The remaining 70% of
our fully diluted common units are beneficially held by our principals through KKR Holdings
in the form of exchangeable KKR Group Partnership Units as described below. See "KKR
Group Partnership Units." On a fully diluted basis, we have an aggregate of 683,007,420
common units outstanding.
In October 2009, our Combined Business was reorganized under the KKR Group Partnerships.
Each KKR Group Partnership has an identical number of partner interests and, when held
together, one Class A partner interest in each of the KKR Group Partnerships together
represents one "KKR Group Partnership Unit." Upon completion of the U.S. Listing and
In-Kind Distribution, we will hold KKR Group Partnership Units representing a 30% interest in
the Combined Business and our principals will hold KKR Group Partnership Units representing
a 70% interest in the Combined Business through their interests in KKR Holdings. KKR Group
Partnership Units that are held by KKR Holdings are exchangeable for our common units on a
one-for-one basis, subject to customary conversion rate adjustments for splits, unit distributions
and reclassifications and compliance with applicable lock-up, vesting and transfer restrictions.
See " Exchange Rights."
Our Managing Partner, which serves as our sole general partner, will manage all of our
business and affairs. You will not hold securities of our Managing Partner. Unlike the holders
of common stock in a corporation, you will have only limited voting rights relating to certain
matters affecting your investment and you will not have the right to elect or remove our
Managing Partner or its directors, who will be appointed by our senior principals.

9
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Through KKR Holdings, our principals will hold special voting units in our partnership in an
amount that is equal to the number of exchangeable KKR Group Partnership Units that

KKR Holdings holds from time to time. These special voting units will entitle our principals to
cast an equivalent number of votes on those few matters that may be submitted to a vote of our
unitholders. Due to the foregoing, our principals generally will have sufficient voting power to
determine the outcome of any matter that may be submitted to a unitholder vote. See
"Description of Our Limited Partnership Agreement Meetings; Voting."

We intend to make quarterly cash distributions in amounts that in the aggregate are expected to
constitute substantially all of the cash earnings of our asset management business in excess of
amounts determined by our Managing Partner to be necessary or appropriate to provide for the
conduct of our business, to make appropriate investments in our business and our investment
funds and to comply with applicable law and any of our debt instruments or other agreements.
We do not intend to distribute gains on our principal assets, other than potentially certain tax
distributions to the extent that distributions for the relevant tax year were otherwise insufficient
to cover certain tax liabilities of our partners, as calculated by us. For the purposes of our
distribution policy, our distributions are expected to consist of (i) our fee related earnings net of
taxes and certain other adjustments, (ii) carry distributions received from our investment funds
and vehicles that have not been allocated as part of our carry pool, and (iii) certain tax
distributions, if any. See "Distribution Policy."

We are party to an exchange agreement pursuant to which KKR Holdings may, up to four times
each year, exchange KKR Group Partnership Units held by them for our common units on a
one-for-one basis, subject to customary conversion rate adjustments for splits, unit distributions
and reclassifications and compliance with applicable lock-up, vesting and transfer restrictions.
Under certain circumstances, we may settle exchanges of KKR Group Partnership Units with
cash in an amount equal to the fair market value of our common units that would otherwise be
deliverable in such exchanges. See "Organizational Structure Exchange Agreement" and
"Certain Relationships and Related Transactions Exchange Agreement."

10
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When KKR Holdings or its transferees transfers their interests in us, we expect, as a result, an
increase in the tax basis of certain of our assets that would not otherwise have been available to
us. This increase in tax basis may increase depreciation and amortization deductions for U.S.
federal income tax purposes and therefore reduce the amount of tax that our corporate
subsidiary would otherwise be required to pay in the future.

We have entered into a tax receivable agreement with KKR Holdings pursuant to which we will
be required to pay to KKR Holdings or its transferees 85% of the amount of cash savings, if
any, in U.S. federal, state and local income tax that we actually realize as a result of tax benefits
resulting from certain exchanges made pursuant to our exchange agreement with KKR
Holdings, as well as 85% of the amount of any such savings we actually realize as a result of
increases in tax basis that arise due to payments under the tax receivable agreement. A
termination of the agreement or a change of control could give rise to similar payments based
on tax savings that we would be deemed to realize in connection with such events. In the event
that other of our current or future subsidiaries become taxable as corporations and acquire KKR
Group Partnership Units in the future, or if we become taxable as a corporation for U.S. federal
income tax purposes, each will become subject to a tax receivable agreement with substantially
similar terms. See "Certain Relationships and Related Party Transactions Tax Receivable
Agreement." Although we are not aware of any issue that would cause the IRS to challenge a
tax basis increase, neither KKR Holdings nor its transferees will reimburse us for any payments
previously made under the tax receivable agreement if such tax basis increase, or the benefits of
such increases, were successfully challenged by the IRS. See "Certain Relationships and
Related Party Transactions Tax Receivable Agreement."

We intend to list our common units on the NYSE under the symbol "KKR."

See "Risk Factors" for a discussion of risks you should carefully consider in connection with
our common units.

In this prospectus, unless otherwise indicated, the number of fully diluted common units outstanding and other information that is based
thereon does not reflect 102,451,113 additional common units that have been reserved for future issuance under our Equity Incentive Plan. The
issuance of common units pursuant to awards under the Equity Incentive Plan would dilute common unitholders and KKR Holdings pro rata in
accordance with their respective percentage interests in the KKR Group Partnerships.

KKR & Co. L.P. was formed as a Delaware limited partnership on June 25, 2007. Our Managing Partner was formed as a Delaware limited
liability company on June 25, 2007. Our principal executive offices are located at 9 West 57th Street, Suite 4200, New York, New York 10019,

and our telephone number is +1 (212) 750-8300. Our website is located at www.kkr.com.

11
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The following summary historical consolidated and combined financial information and other data of KKR should be read together with
"Organizational Structure," "Unaudited Pro Forma Financial Information," "Selected Historical Financial and Other Data," "Management's
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" and the consolidated and combined financial statements and related
notes included elsewhere in this prospectus. We derived the summary historical consolidated and combined financial data as of December 31,
2008 and 2009 and for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2008 and 2009 from the audited consolidated and combined financial statements
included elsewhere in this prospectus. We derived the summary historical consolidated and combined financial data as of December 31, 2007
from audited combined financial statements that are not included in this prospectus. The summary historical consolidated and combined
financial information presented below reflects the economic impact of the Transactions for periods following October 1, 2009.

For the Years Ended December 31,

2007 2008 2009
Statement of Operations Data:
Revenues
Fees $ 862,265 $ 235,181 $ 331,271
Expenses
Employee Compensation and Benefits(1) 212,766 149,182 838,072
Occupancy and Related Charges 20,068 30,430 38,013
General, Administrative and Other(1) 128,036 179,673 264,396
Fund Expenses 80,040 59,103 55,229
Total Expenses 440,910 418,388 1,195,710
Investment Income (Loss)
Net Gains (Losses) from Investment Activities 1,111,572 (12,944,720) 7,505,005
Dividend Income 747,544 75,441 186,324
Interest Income 218,920 129,601 142,117
Interest Expense (86,253) (125,561) (79,638)
Total Investment Income (Loss) 1,991,783 (12,865,239) 7,753,808
Income (Loss) Before Taxes 2,413,138 (13,048,446) 6,889,369
Income Taxes(2) 12,064 6,786 36,998
Net Income (Loss) 2,401,074 (13,055,232) 6,852,371
Less: Net Income (Loss) Attributable to Noncontrolling
Interests in Consolidated Entities 1,598,310 (11,850,761) 6,119,382
Less: Net Income (Loss) Attributable to Noncontrolling
Interests Held by KKR Holdings (116,696)
Net Income (Loss) Attributable to Group Holdings(3) $ 802,764 $ (1,204,471) $ 849,685
12
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December 31, December 31, December 31,
2007 2008 2009
Statement of Financial Condition Data (period
end):
Total assets $ 32,842,796 $ 22,441,030 $ 30,221,111
Total liabilities $ 2,575,636 $ 2,590,673 $ 2,859,630
Noncontrolling interests in consolidated entities $ 28,749,814 $ 19,698,478 $ 23,275,272
Noncontrolling interests attributable to KKR
Holdings $ $ $ 3,072,360
Total Group Holdings partners' capital(4) $ 1,517,346  $ 151,879 $ 1,013,849
Segment Data(5):
Fee related earnings(6)
Private Markets $ 416,387 $ 161,449 $ 242,917
Public Markets $ 48,072 $ 32,576 $ 10,554
Capital Markets and Principal Activities $ $ $ 15,827
Economic net income(7)
Private Markets $ 775,014 $  (1,232,316) $ 1,113,138
Public Markets $ 39,814 §$ 36,842 $ 5,279
Capital Markets and Principal Activities $ $ $ 368,237
Partners' capital(4)
Private Markets $ 1,499,321 $ 108,223 $ 277,062
Public Markets $ 18,025 $ 45,867 $ 49,581
Capital Markets and Principal Activities $ $ $ 3,826,241
Other Data:
Assets under management (period end)(8) $ 53,215,700 $ 48,450,700 $ 52,204,200
Fee paying assets under management (period
end)(9) $ 39,862,168 $ 43411,800 $ 42,779,800
Committed dollars invested(10) $ 14,854,200 $ 3,168,800 $ 2,107,700
Uncalled commitments (period end)(11) $ 11,530,417 $ 14,930,142 $ 14,544,427

(M
Includes non-cash charges arising from the issuance and vesting of interests in KKR Holdings upon and following the completion of
the Transactions on October 1, 2009 in the amounts of $481.4 million recorded in employee compensation and benefits expense and
$81.0 million recorded in general, administrative and other expense. In addition, allocations to our carry pool resulted in
$163.1 million recorded in employee compensation and benefits expense and $4.1 million recorded in general, administrative and
other expense.

@
Prior to the Transactions, most of the entities in our consolidated group were taxed as partnerships and our income was generally
allocated to, and the resulting tax liability generally was borne by, our principals at an individual level. Accordingly, the taxes they
paid are not reflected in our consolidated and combined financial statements. Following the Transactions, certain of our income will be
subject to corporate tax.

3
Subsequent to the Transactions, net income (loss) attributable to Group Holdings reflects only those amounts that are allocable to KKR
Guernsey's 30% interest in our Combined Business. Net Income (Loss) that is allocable to our principals' 70% interest in our
Combined Business is reflected in net income (loss) attributable to noncontrolling interests held by KKR Holdings.

C)
As of December 31, 2009, total Group Holdings partners' capital reflects only the portion of equity attributable to Group Holdings
(reflecting KKR Guernsey's 30% interest in our Combined Business) and differs from partners' capital reported on a segment basis
primarily as a result of the exclusion of the following items from our segment presentation: (i) the impact of income taxes; (ii) charges
relating to the amortization of intangible assets; (iii) non-cash equity based charges; and (iv) allocations of equity to KKR Holdings.
For a reconciliation to the $4,152.9 million of partners' capital reported on a segment basis, please see "Management's Discussion and
Analysis
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of Financial Condition and Results of Operations Segment Partners' Capital." KKR Holdings' 70% interest in our Combined Business
is reflected as noncontrolling interests held by KKR Holdings and is not included in total Group Holdings partners' capital.

Our Capital Markets and Principal Activities segment was formed by combining the assets we acquired in the Combination
Transaction with our global capital markets business upon completion of the Transactions on October 1, 2009. Accordingly, no
segment data is reported for the Capital Markets and Principal Activities segment for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2008.
See "Unaudited Pro Forma Financial Information" for a summary of the economic impact of the Transactions.

Fee related earnings ("FRE") is comprised of segment operating revenues, less segment operating expenses. The components of FRE
on a segment basis differ from the equivalent U.S. GAAP amounts on a combined basis as a result of: (i) the inclusion of management
fees earned from consolidated funds that were eliminated in consolidation; (ii) the exclusion of expenses of consolidated funds;

(iii) the exclusion of charges relating to the amortization of intangible assets; (iv) the exclusion of charges relating to carry pool
allocations; (v) the exclusion of non-cash equity charges and other non-cash compensation charges; (vi) the exclusion of certain
reimbursable expenses and (vii) the exclusion of certain non-recurring items.

Economic net income ("ENI") is a measure of profitability for our reportable segments and is comprised of: (i) FRE; plus (ii) segment
investment income, which is reduced for carry pool allocations and management fee refunds; less (iii) certain economic interests in our
segments held by third parties. ENI differs from net income on a U.S. GAAP basis as a result of: (i) the exclusion of the items referred
to in FRE above; (ii) the exclusion of investment income relating to noncontrolling interests; and (iii) the exclusion of income taxes.

Assets under management ("AUM") represent the assets from which we are entitled to receive fee income or a carried interest and
general partner capital. We calculate the amount of AUM as of any date as the sum of: (i) the fair value of the investments of our
investment funds plus uncalled capital commitments from these funds; (ii) the fair value of investments in our co-investment vehicles;
(iii) the net asset value of certain of our fixed income products; and (iv) the value of outstanding structured finance vehicles. You
should note that our calculation of AUM may differ from the calculations of other asset managers and, as a result, our measurements
of AUM may not be comparable to similar measures presented by other asset managers. Our definition of AUM is not based on any
definition of AUM that is set forth in the agreements governing the investment funds, vehicles or accounts that we manage. The AUM
amounts reported as of December 31, 2007 and 2008 reflect the NAV of KPE and its commitments to our investment funds as those
periods are prior to the Combination Transaction on October 1, 2009. Subsequent to the Combination Transaction, we began reporting
AUM excluding the NAV of KPE and its commitments to our private equity funds. On a pro forma basis, giving effect to the
exclusion of KPE, AUM as of December 31, 2007 and 2008 would have been $47.2 billion and $44.9 billion, respectively.

Fee paying assets under management ("FPAUM") represents only those assets under management from which we receive fees.
FPAUM is the sum of all of the individual fee bases that are used to calculate our fees and differs from AUM in the following
respects: (i) assets from which we do not receive a fee are excluded (i.e., assets with respect to which we receive only carried interest);
and (ii) certain assets, primarily in our private equity funds, are reflected based on capital commitments and invested capital as
opposed to fair value because fees are not impacted by changes in the fair value of underlying investments. The FPAUM amounts
reported as of December 31, 2007 and 2008 reflect the NAV of KPE as those periods are prior to the Combination Transaction on
October 1, 2009. Subsequent to the Combination Transaction, we began reporting FPAUM excluding the NAV of KPE in its entirety
as fees paid by KPE to our
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management companies are eliminated as intersegment transactions. On a pro forma basis, giving effect to the exclusion of KPE,
FPAUM as of December 31, 2007 and 2008 would have been $35.2 billion and $40.2 billion, respectively.

Committed dollars invested is the aggregate amount of capital commitments that have been invested by our investment funds and
carry-yielding co-investment vehicles during a given period. Such amounts include: (i) capital invested by fund investors and
co-investors with respect to which we are entitled to a carried interest and (ii) capital invested by us.

Uncalled commitments represent unfunded capital commitments that our investment funds and carry-paying co-investment vehicles
have received from partners to contribute capital to fund future investments.
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RISK FACTORS

You should carefully consider the following information about these risks, together with the other information contained in this prospectus
in connection with U.S. Listing and holding our common units.

Risks Related to Our Business

Difficult market conditions can adversely affect our business in many ways, including by reducing the value or performance of the
investments that we manage or by reducing the ability of our funds to raise or deploy capital, each of which could negatively impact our net
income and cash flow and adversely affect our financial condition.

Our business is materially affected by conditions in the financial markets and economic conditions or events throughout the world, such as
interest rates, availability of credit, inflation rates, economic uncertainty, changes in laws (including laws relating to taxation), trade barriers,
commodity prices, currency exchange rates and controls and national and international political circumstances (including wars, terrorist acts or
security operations). These factors are outside our control and may affect the level and volatility of securities prices and the liquidity and the
value of our investments. In addition, we may not be able to or may choose not to manage our exposure to these conditions and/or events. The
market conditions surrounding each of our businesses, and in particular our private equity business, had been quite favorable for a number of
years. A significant portion of the investments of our private equity funds were made during this period. Market conditions, however,
significantly deteriorated in 2008 and 2009 and generally remain at depressed levels. Global financial markets experienced considerable declines
in the valuations of equity and debt securities, an acute contraction in the availability of credit and the failure of a number of leading financial
institutions. Many economies around the world, including the U.S. economy, are in a period of significant decline in employment, household
wealth, and lending. These events have led to a significantly diminished availability of credit and an increase in the cost of financing. The lack
of credit has materially hindered the initiation of new, large-sized transactions for our private equity business and, together with declines in
valuations of equity and debt securities, has adversely impacted our recent operating results reflected in our combined financial statements
included in this prospectus. Our profitability may also be adversely affected by our fixed costs and the possibility that we would be unable to
scale back other costs within a time frame sufficient to match any decreases in net income relating to changes in market and economic
conditions.

Our funds may be affected by reduced opportunities to exit and realize value from their investments as lack of financing makes it more
difficult for potential buyers to raise sufficient capital to purchase assets in our funds' portfolios, by lower than expected returns on investments
made prior to the deterioration of the credit markets, which could cause us to realise diminished or no carried interest, and by the fact that we
may not be able to find suitable investments for the funds to effectively deploy capital, which could adversely affect our ability to raise new
funds because we can generally only raise capital for a successor fund following the substantial deployment of capital from the existing fund. In
the event of poor performance by existing funds or in the absence of improvements in market or economic conditions, fundraising conditions are
likely to remain challenging and pressures by investors for lower fees, different fee sharing arrangements or fee concessions will likely continue
and could increase. The outcome of such negotiations could result in our agreement to terms that are materially less favorable to us than for prior
funds we have managed or funds managed by our competitors. We might also choose in such circumstances to reduce the size of any new funds
so as to include only those investors willing to participate on terms we view as acceptable, which could also reduce our revenues. During 2009,
we believe that certain fund sponsors decreased the amount of fees they charge investors for fund management. Investors may also seek to
redeploy capital away from certain of our fixed income vehicles, which permit redemptions on relatively short notice, in order to meet liquidity
needs or invest in other asset classes.
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During periods of difficult market or economic conditions or slowdowns (which may be across one or more industries, sectors or
geographies), companies in which we have invested may experience decreased revenues, financial losses, credit rating downgrades, difficulty in
obtaining access to financing and increased funding costs. These companies may also have difficulty in expanding their businesses and
operations or be unable to meet their debt service obligations or other expenses as they become due, including expenses payable to us. Negative
financial results in our funds' portfolio companies may result in lower investment returns for our investment funds, which could materially and
adversely affect our operating results and cash flow. To the extent the operating performance of such portfolio companies (as well as valuation
multiples) do not improve or other portfolio companies experience adverse operating performance, our funds may sell those assets at values that
are less than we projected or even at a loss, thereby significantly affecting those funds' performance and consequently our operating results and
cash flow. During such periods of economic difficulty, our investment funds' portfolio companies may also have difficulty expanding their
businesses and operations or meeting their debt service obligations or other expenses as they become due, including amounts payable to us.
Furthermore, negative market conditions or a specific market dislocation may result in lower investment returns for our funds, which would
further adversely affect our net income. Adverse conditions may also increase the risk of default with respect to private equity, fixed income and
other equity investments that we manage. Although market conditions have recently shown some signs of improvement, we are unable to predict
whether economic and market conditions may continue to improve. Even if economic and market conditions do improve broadly and
significantly over the long term, adverse conditions in particular sectors may cause our performance to suffer.

Changes in the debt financing markets have negatively impacted the ability of our private equity funds and their portfolio companies to
obtain attractive financing for their investments and have increased the cost of such financing if it is obtained, which could lead to
lower-yielding investments and potentially decreasing our net income.

During 2008 and 2009, the markets for debt financing contracted significantly, particularly in the area of acquisition financings for private
equity and real estate transactions. Large commercial and investment banks, which have traditionally provided such financing, have demanded
higher rates, higher equity requirements as part of private equity and real estate investments, more restrictive covenants and generally more
onerous terms in order to provide such financing, and in some cases are refusing to provide financing for acquisitions the type of which would
have been readily financed in earlier years. In the event that our funds are unable to obtain committed debt financing for potential acquisitions or
can only obtain debt at an increased interest rate or on unfavorable terms, our funds may have difficulty completing otherwise profitable
acquisitions or may generate profits that are lower than would otherwise be the case, either of which could lead to a decrease in the investment
income earned by us. Any failure by lenders to provide previously committed financing can also expose us to potential claims by sellers of
businesses which we may have contracted to purchase. Similarly, our portfolio companies regularly utilize the corporate debt markets in order to
obtain financing for their operations. To the extent that the current credit markets have rendered such financing difficult to obtain or more
expensive, this may negatively impact the operating performance of those portfolio companies and, therefore, the investment returns on our
funds. In addition, to the extent that the current markets make it difficult or impossible to refinance debt that is maturing in the near term, we or
some of our portfolio companies may be unable to repay such debt at maturity and may be forced to sell assets, undergo a recapitalization or
seek bankruptcy protection.
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Recent developments in the U.S. and global financial markets have created a great deal of uncertainty for the asset management industry,
and these developments may adversely affect the investments made by our funds or their portfolio companies or reduce the ability of our
funds to raise or deploy capital, each of which could further materially reduce our revenue, net income and cash flow.

Recent developments in the U.S. and global financial markets have illustrated that the current environment is one of extraordinary and
unprecedented uncertainty and instability for the asset management industry. With global credit markets experiencing substantial disruption
(especially in the mortgage finance markets) and liquidity shortages, financial instability spread globally. In response to the financial crises
affecting the banking system and financial markets and going concern threats to investment banks and other financial institutions, in October
2008, the U.S. government passed the Emergency Economic Stabilization Act of 2008, authorizing the U.S. Secretary of the Treasury to
purchase up to $700 billion in distressed mortgage related assets from financial institutions, the U.S. Federal Reserve announced the creation of
a special-purpose facility to buy commercial paper in order to stabilize financial markets and the U.S. Treasury Department announced a capital
purchase program under the Emergency Economic Stabilization Act of 2008 pursuant to which the Treasury may purchase up to $250 billion of
senior preferred shares in certain financial institutions. The U.K. government similarly announced a plan to recapitalize some of the country's
largest financial institutions. In March 2009, the U.S. Department of the Treasury and the Federal Reserve announced the launch of the Term
Asset-Backed Securities Loan Facility, which provides up to $200 billion of financing (which may be increased to up to $1 trillion) to certain
U.S. entities to purchase qualifying asset-backed securities, and the U.S. Department of the Treasury announced plans for the Public Private
Investment Partnership Program for legacy assets, which is intended to facilitate the purchase of various loans and securities held by financial
institutions. In addition, there has also been substantial consolidation in the financial services industry. Although market conditions have
recently shown some signs of improvement, there can be no assurances that conditions in the global financial markets will not worsen and/or
further adversely affect our investments, access to leverage and overall performance.

Adpverse economic and market conditions may adversely affect our liquidity position, which could adversely affect our business operations in
the future.

We expect that our primary liquidity needs will consist of cash required to: (i) continue to grow our business, including funding our capital
commitments made to existing and future funds and any net capital requirements of our capital markets companies, (ii) service debt obligations,
including indebtedness acquired from KKR Guernsey in connection with the Combination Transaction and any contingent liabilities that give
rise to future cash payments, (iii) fund cash operating expenses, (iv) pay amounts that may become due under our tax receivable agreement with
KKR Holdings; and (v) make cash distributions in accordance with our distribution policy. These liquidity requirements are significant and, in
some cases, involve capital that will remain invested for extended periods of time. As of December 31, 2009, we have approximately
$1,272.3 million of remaining unfunded capital commitments to our investment funds, including $827.3 million of unfunded commitments
acquired from KKR Guernsey. Our commitments to our funds will require significant cash outlays over time, and there can be no assurance that
we will be able to generate sufficient cash flows from realizations of investments to fund them. In addition, as of December 31, 2009, we had
$733.7 million of borrowings outstanding under our credit facilities and $546.7 million of cash and cash equivalents. While we have long-term
committed financings with substantial facility limits, the terms of those facilities will expire in 2012 and 2013, respectively (see "Management's
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations Liquidity and Capital Resources"), and any borrowings thereunder
will require refinancing or renewal, which could result in higher borrowing costs, or issuing equity. If the current credit market conditions were
to worsen, we may not be able to renew all or part of these credit facilities or find alternate sources of financing on commercially reasonable
terms or raise equity. In that event, our uses of cash could exceed our sources of cash, thereby potentially adversely affecting our
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liquidity or causing us to sell assets on unfavorable terms. In addition, the underwriting commitments for our capital markets business may
require significant cash obligations, and these commitments may also put pressure on our liquidity. The holding company for our capital markets
business has entered into a credit agreement that provides for revolving borrowings of up to $500 million, which can be used in connection with
our ongoing business activities, including placing and underwriting securities offerings. To the extent we commit to buy and sell an issue of
securities in firm commitment underwritings or otherwise, we may be required to borrow under this credit agreement to fund such obligations,
which, depending on the size and timing of the obligations, may limit our ability to enter into other underwriting arrangements or similar
activities, service existing debt obligations or otherwise grow our business.

The "clawback'" or ''net loss sharing'' provisions in our governing agreements may give rise to a contingent obligation that may require us
to return or contribute amounts to our funds and investors.

The partnership documents governing our traditional private equity funds generally include a "clawback" or, in certain instances, a "net loss
sharing" provision that, if triggered, may give rise to a contingent obligation that may require the general partner to return or contribute amounts
to the fund for distribution to investors at the end of the life of the fund. Under a "clawback" provision, upon the liquidation of a fund, the
general partner is required to return, on an after-tax basis, previously distributed carry to the extent that, due to the diminished performance of
later investments, the aggregate amount of carry distributions received by the general partner during the term of the fund exceed the amount to
which the general partner was ultimately entitled. Excluding carried interest received by the general partners of our 1996 Fund (which was not
contributed to us in the Transactions), as of December 31, 2009, the amount of carried interest we have received that is subject to this clawback
obligation was $84.9 million, assuming that all applicable private equity funds were liquidated at their December 31, 2009 fair values. Had the
investments in such funds been liquidated at zero value, the clawback obligation would have been $716.2 million. Under a "net loss sharing
provision," upon the liquidation of a fund, the general partner is required to contribute capital to the fund, to fund 20% of the net losses on
investments. In these vehicles, such losses would be required to be paid by us to the limited partners in those vehicles in the event of a
liquidation of the fund regardless of whether any carried interest had previously been distributed. Based on the fair market values as of
December 31, 2009, our obligation in connection with the net loss sharing provision would have been approximately $93.6 million. If the
vehicles were liquidated at zero value, the contingent repayment obligation in connection with the net loss sharing provision as of December 31,
2009 would have been approximately $1,182.7 million.

Prior to the Transactions, certain of our principals who received carried interest distributions with respect to the private equity funds had
personally guaranteed, on a several basis and subject to a cap, the contingent obligations of the general partners of the private equity funds to
repay amounts to fund limited partners pursuant to the general partners' clawback obligations. The terms of the Transactions require that our
principals remain responsible for clawback obligations relating to carry distributions received prior to the Transactions up to a maximum of
$223.6 million. Carry distributions arising subsequent to the Transactions may give rise to clawback obligations that may be allocated generally
to carry pool participants and the Combined Business in accordance with the terms of the instruments governing the KKR Group Partnerships.
Unlike the "clawback" provisions, the Combined Business will be responsible for amounts due under net loss sharing arrangements and will
indemnify our principals for any personal guarantees that they have provided with respect to such amounts.

QOur earnings and cash flow are highly variable due to the nature of our business and we do not intend to provide earnings guidance, each of
which may cause the value of interests in our business to be volatile.

Our earnings are highly variable from quarter to quarter due to the volatility of investment returns of most of our funds and other
investment vehicles and our principal assets and the fee income earned
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from our funds. We recognize earnings on investments in our funds based on our allocable share of realized and unrealized gains (or losses)
reported by such funds, and a decline in realized or unrealized gains, or an increase in realized or unrealized losses, would adversely affect our
net income. Fee income, which we recognize when contractually earned, can vary due to fluctuations in AUM, the number of investment
transactions made by our funds, the number of portfolio companies we manage and the fee provisions contained in our funds and other
investment products. We may create new funds or investment products or vary the terms of our funds or investment products, which may alter
the composition or mix of our income from time to time. We may also experience fluctuations in our results from quarter to quarter, including
our revenue and net income, due to a number of other factors, including changes in the values of our funds' investments, changes in the amount
of distributions or interest earned in respect of investments, changes in our operating expenses, the degree to which we encounter competition
and general economic and market conditions. Such variability may lead to variability in the value of interests in our business and cause our
results for a particular period not to be indicative of our performance in future periods. It may be difficult for us to achieve steady growth in net
income and cash flow on a quarterly basis, which could in turn lead to large adverse movements in the value of interests in our business.

The timing and receipt of carried interest from our private equity funds are unpredictable and will contribute to the volatility of our cash
flows. Carried interest payments from private equity investments depend on our funds' performance and opportunities for realizing gains, which
may be limited. It takes a substantial period of time to identify attractive private equity investment opportunities, to raise all the funds needed to
make an investment and then to realize the cash value (or other proceeds) of an investment through a sale, public offering or other exit. To the
extent a private equity investment is not profitable, no carried interest shall be received from our private equity funds with respect to that
investment and, to the extent such investment remains unprofitable, we will only be entitled to a management fee on that investment. Even if a
private equity investment proves to be profitable, it may be several years before any profits can be realized in cash. We cannot predict when, or
if, any realization of investments will occur. In particular, since the latter half of 2007, the credit dislocation and related reluctance of many
finance providers, such as commercial and investment banks, to provide financing have made it difficult for potential purchasers to secure
financing to purchase companies in our investment funds' portfolio, thereby decreasing potential realization events and the potential to earn
carried interest. A downturn in the equity markets also makes it more difficult to exit investments by selling equity securities. If we were to have
a realization event in a particular quarter, the event may have a significant impact on our cash flows during the quarter that may not be replicated
in subsequent quarters. A decline in realized or unrealized gains, or an increase in realized or unrealized losses, would adversely affect our
investment income, which could further increase the volatility of our quarterly results.

A decline in the pace or size of investment by our funds or an increase in the amount of transaction fees we share with our investors would
result in our receiving less revenue from transaction fees.

The transaction fees that we earn are driven in part by the pace at which our funds make investments and the size of those investments. Any
decline in that pace or the size of such investments would reduce our transaction fees and could make it more difficult for us to raise capital.
Many factors could cause such a decline in the pace of investment, including the inability of our investment professionals to identify attractive
investment opportunities, competition for such opportunities among other potential acquirers, decreased availability of capital on attractive terms
and our failure to consummate identified investment opportunities because of business, regulatory or legal complexities and adverse
developments in the U.S. or global economy or financial markets. In particular, the current limited financing options for leveraged buy-outs
resulting from the credit market dislocation has significantly reduced the pace and size of traditional buyout investments by our funds. In
addition, we have confronted and expect to continue to confront requests from a variety of investors and groups
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representing investors to increase the percentage of transaction fees we share with our investors. To the extent we accommodate such requests, it
would result in a decrease in the amount of fee revenue we earn.

The asset management business is intensely competitive, which could have a material adverse impact on our business.

We compete as an asset manager for both investors and investment opportunities. Our competitors consist primarily of sponsors of public
and private investment funds, business development companies, investment banks, commercial finance companies and operating companies
acting as strategic buyers of businesses. We believe that competition for investors is based primarily on investment performance; investor
liquidity and willingness to invest; investor perception of investment managers' drive, focus and alignment of interest; business reputation; the
duration of relationships with investors; the quality of services provided to investors; pricing; fund terms (including fees); and the relative
attractiveness of the types of investments that have been or will be made. We believe that competition for investment opportunities is based
primarily on the pricing, terms and structure of a proposed investment and certainty of execution.

Due to the global economic downturn and relatively poor investment returns, institutional investors have suffered from decreasing returns,
liquidity pressure, increased volatility and difficulty maintaining targeted asset allocations, and a significant number of investors have materially
decreased or temporarily suspended making new fund investments during this period. As the economy begins to recover, such investors may
elect to reduce their overall portfolio allocations to alternative investments such as private equity funds, resulting in a smaller overall pool of
available capital in our industry. Investors may also seek to redeploy capital away from certain of our fixed income vehicles, which permit
redemptions on relatively short notice in order to meet liquidity needs or invest in other asset classes.

In the event all or part of this analysis proves true, when trying to raise new capital we will be competing for less available capital in an
increasingly competitive environment which could lead to terms less favorable to us as well as difficulty in raising new capital. Such changes
would adversely affect our revenues and profitability.

A number of factors serve to increase our competitive risks:

a number of our competitors in some of our businesses have greater financial, technical, marketing and other resources and
more personnel than we do;

a significant number of investors have materially decreased or temporarily suspended making new fund investments recently
because of the global economic downturn and relatively poor returns in their overall alternative asset investment portfolios

in 2008 and 2009;

some of our competitors may have better expertise or be regarded by investors as having better expertise in a specific asset
class or geographic region than we do;

some of our funds may not perform as well as competitors' funds or other available investment products;

investors may reduce their investments in our funds or not make additional investments in our funds based upon their
available capital;

several of our competitors have recently raised during a period of easier fundraising, or are expected to raise, significant
amounts of capital, which fundraising efforts may occur on or around the same time as ours, and many of them have similar
investment objectives and strategies to our funds, which may create additional competition for investment opportunities and
may reduce the size and duration of pricing inefficiencies that many alternative investment strategies seek to exploit;
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some of these competitors may also have a lower cost of capital and access to funding sources that are not available to us,
which may create competitive disadvantages for us with respect to investment opportunities;

some of our competitors may have higher risk tolerances, different risk assessments or lower return thresholds, which could
allow them to consider a wider variety of investments and to bid more aggressively than us for investments;

our competitors that are corporate buyers may be able to achieve synergistic cost savings in respect of an investment, which
may provide them with a competitive advantage in bidding for an investment;

there are relatively few barriers to entry impeding the formation of new funds, including a relatively low cost of entering
these businesses, and the successful efforts of new entrants into our various lines of business, including major commercial

and investment banks and other financial institutions, have resulted in increased competition;

some investors may prefer to invest with an investment manager that is not publicly traded, is smaller, or manages fewer
investment products; and

other industry participants will from time to time seek to recruit our investment professionals and other employees away
from us.

We may lose investment opportunities in the future if we do not match investment prices, structures and terms offered by competitors.
Alternatively, we may experience decreased investment returns and increased risks of loss if we match investment prices, structures and terms
offered by competitors. Moreover, if we are forced to compete with other alternative asset managers on the basis of price, we may not be able to
maintain our current fund fee, carried interest or other terms. There is a risk that fees and carried interest in the alternative investment
management industry will decline, without regard to the historical performance of a manager. Fee or carried interest income reductions on
existing or future funds, without corresponding decreases in our cost structure, would adversely affect our revenues and profitability.

In addition, if interest rates were to rise or if market conditions for competing investment products improve and such products begin to offer
rates of return superior to those achieved by our funds, the attractiveness of our funds relative to investments in other investment products could
decrease. This competitive pressure could adversely affect our ability to make successful investments and limit our ability to raise future funds,
either of which would adversely impact our business, results of operations and cash flow.

Our structure involves complex provisions of U.S. federal income tax laws for which no clear precedent or authority may be available. These
structures also are subject to potential legislative, judicial or administrative change and differing interpretations, possibly on a retroactive
basis.

The U.S. federal income tax treatment of our unitholders depends in some instances on determinations of fact and interpretations of
complex provisions of U.S. federal income tax laws for which no clear precedent or authority may be available. You should be aware that the
U.S. federal income tax rules are constantly under review by persons involved in the legislative process, the Internal Revenue Service, or IRS,
and the U.S. Department of the Treasury frequently resulting in revised interpretations of established concepts, statutory changes, revisions to
regulations and other modifications and interpretations. The present U.S. federal income tax treatment of owning our common units may be
modified by administrative, legislative or judicial interpretation at any time, and any such action may affect investments and commitments
previously made. For instance, changes to the U.S. federal tax laws and interpretations thereof could make it more difficult or impossible for us
to be treated as a partnership that is not taxable as a corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes, affect the tax considerations of owning our
common units, change the character or treatment of portions of
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our income (including, for instance, the treatment of carried interest as ordinary income rather than capital gain) and adversely impact your
investment in our common units. See the discussion below under " Legislation has been introduced in the U.S. Congress in various forms that, if
enacted, (i) could preclude us from qualifying as a partnership and/or (ii) could tax carried interest as ordinary income for U.S. federal income
tax purposes and require us to hold carried interest through taxable subsidiary corporations. If this or any similar legislation or regulation were to
be enacted and apply to us, we would incur a material increase in our tax liability that could result in a reduction in the market price of our
common units." Our organizational documents and agreements permit the Managing Partner to modify the amended and restated partnership
agreement from time to time, without the consent of the unitholders, to address certain changes in U.S. federal income tax regulations,
legislation or interpretation. In some circumstances, such revisions could have a material adverse impact on some or all unitholders. Moreover,
certain assumptions and conventions will be applied in an attempt to comply with applicable rules and to report income, gain, deduction, loss
and credit to unitholders in a manner that reflects such unitholders' beneficial ownership of partnership items, taking into account variation in
ownership interests during each taxable year because of trading activity. However, those assumptions and conventions may not be in compliance
with all aspects of applicable tax requirements. It is possible that the IRS will assert successfully that the conventions and assumptions used by
us do not satisfy the technical requirements of the Internal Revenue Code and/or Treasury regulations and could require that items of income,
gain, deductions, loss or credit, including interest deductions, be adjusted, reallocated or disallowed in a manner that adversely affects our
unitholders.

Legislation has been introduced in the U.S. Congress in various forms that, if enacted, (i) could preclude us from qualifying as a partnership
and/or (ii) could tax carried interest as ordinary income for U.S. federal income tax purposes and require us to hold carried interest through
taxable subsidiary corporations. If this or any similar legislation or regulation were to be enacted and apply to us, we would incur a material
increase in our tax liability that could result in a reduction in the market price of our common units.

In 2007, legislation was introduced in the U.S. Congress that would tax as corporations publicly traded partnerships that directly or
indirectly derive income from investment advisor or asset management services. In 2008, the U.S. House of Representatives passed a bill that
would generally (i) treat carried interest as non-qualifying income under the tax rules applicable to publicly traded partnerships, which could
preclude us from qualifying as a partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes, and (ii) tax carried interest as ordinary income for U.S. federal
income taxes, rather than in accordance with the character of income derived by the underlying fund. In December 2009, the U.S. House of
Representatives passed substantially similar legislation. Such legislation would tax carried interest as ordinary income starting this taxable year.
In addition, the Obama administration proposed in its published revenue proposals for both 2010 and 2011 that the current law regarding the
treatment of carried interest be changed to subject such income to ordinary income tax. Certain versions of the proposed legislation (including
the legislation passed in December 2009) contain a transition rule that may delay the applicability of certain aspects of the legislation for a
partnership that is a publicly traded partnership on the date of enactment of the legislation.

If the changes suggested by the administration or any of the proposed legislation or similar legislation were adopted, income attributable to
carried interest may not meet the qualifying income requirements under the publicly traded partnership rules, and, therefore, we could either be
precluded from qualifying as a partnership for U.S. federal income tax purpose or be required to hold interests in entities earning such income
through a taxable U.S. corporation. If we were taxed as a corporation, our effective tax rate would increase significantly. The federal statutory
rate for corporations is currently 35%. In addition, we would likely be subject to increased state and local taxes. Therefore, if any such
legislation or similar legislation were to be enacted and apply to us, it would materially increase our tax liability, which could well result in a
reduction in the market price of our common units.

In addition, if the proposed legislation is adopted, it could increase the amount of tax KKR's principals and other professionals would be
required to pay, thereby adversely affecting KKR's ability to offer attractive incentive opportunities for key personnel.
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We depend on our founders and other key personnel, the loss of whose services would have a material adverse effect on our business, results
and financial condition.

We depend on the efforts, skills, reputations and business contacts of our principals, including our founders, Henry Kravis and George
Roberts, and other key personnel, the information and deal flow they and others generate during the normal course of their activities and the
synergies among the diverse fields of expertise and knowledge held by our professionals. Accordingly, our success depends on the continued
service of these individuals, who are not obligated to remain employed with us. The loss of the services of any of them could have a material
adverse effect on our revenues, net income and cash flows and could harm our ability to maintain or grow AUM in existing funds or raise
additional funds in the future.

Our principals and other key personnel possess substantial experience and expertise and have strong business relationships with investors in
our funds and other members of the business community. As a result, the loss of these personnel could jeopardize our relationships with
investors in our funds and members of the business community and result in the reduction of AUM or fewer investment opportunities. For
example, if any of our principals were to join or form a competing firm, our business, results and financial condition could suffer.

Furthermore, the agreements governing our traditional private equity funds and certain fixed income funds managed by us provide that in
the event certain "key persons" in these funds (for example, both of Messrs. Kravis and Roberts, and, in the case of certain geographically or
product focused funds, one or more of the executives focused on such funds) generally cease to actively manage a fund, investors in the fund
will be entitled to: (i) in the case of our traditional private equity funds, reduce, in whole or in part, their capital commitments available for
further investments; and (ii) in the case of certain of our fixed income funds, withdraw all or any portion of their capital accounts, in each case
on an investor-by-investor basis. The occurrence of such an event would likely have a significant negative impact on our revenue, net income
and cash flow.

If we cannot retain and motivate our principals and other key personnel and recruit, retain and motivate new principals and other key
personnel, our business, results and financial condition could be adversely affected.

Our most important asset is our people, and our continued success is highly dependent upon the efforts of our principals and other
professionals, and to a substantial degree on our ability to retain and motivate our principals and other key personnel and to strategically recruit,
retain and motivate new talented personnel, including new principals. However, we may not be successful in these efforts as the market for
qualified investment professionals is extremely competitive. Our ability to recruit, retain and motivate our professionals is dependent on our
ability to offer highly attractive incentive opportunities. If legislation, such as the legislation proposed in April 2009 (and reproposed in 2010)
were to be enacted, income and gains recognized with respect to carried interest would be treated for U.S. federal income tax purposes as
ordinary income rather than as capital gain. Such legislation would materially increase the amount of taxes that we, our principals and other
professionals would be required to pay, thereby adversely affecting our ability to offer such attractive incentive opportunities. See " Risks
Related to U.S. Taxation". The loss of even a small number of our investment professionals could jeopardize the performance of our funds and
other investment products, which would have a material adverse effect on our results of operations. Efforts to retain or attract investment
professionals may result in significant additional expenses, which could adversely affect our profitability.

Our principals hold interests in our business through KKR Holdings. These individuals receive financial benefits from our business in the
form of distributions and amounts funded by KKR Holdings and through their direct and indirect participation in the value of KKR Group
Partnership Units held by KKR Holdings. While all of our employees and our principals receive base salaries from us, profit-based cash amounts
for certain individuals are borne by KKR Holdings. There can be no assurance that KKR Holdings will have sufficient cash available to continue
to make profit-based cash payments.
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In addition, we might not be able to provide our principals with equity interests in our business to the same extent or with the same tax
consequences as we did prior to October 1, 2009, and distributions in respect of these interests may not equal the cash distributions previously
received by these individuals prior to October 1, 2009 and may not be sufficient to retain and motivate our principals and other key personnel,
nor may they be sufficiently attractive to strategically recruit, retain and motivate new talented personnel. The value of the interests held by our
principals in KKR Holdings may fall (as reflected in the market price of our common units), which could counteract the incentives we are
seeking to put in place. Therefore, in order to recruit and retain existing and future investment professionals, we may need to increase the level
of compensation that we pay to them, which may cause a higher percentage of our revenue to be paid out in the form of compensation, which
would have an adverse impact on our profit margins. In addition, the issuance of equity interests in our business to employees could dilute
common unitholders and KKR Holdings.

In addition, there is no guarantee that the confidentiality and restrictive covenant agreements to which our principals are subject, together
with our other arrangements with them, will prevent them from leaving us, joining our competitors or otherwise competing with us or that these
agreements will be enforceable in all cases. These agreements will expire after a certain period of time, at which point each of our principals
would be free to compete against us and solicit investors in our funds, clients and employees. Depending on which entity is a party to these
agreements, we may not be able to enforce them, and these agreements might be waived, modified or amended at any time without our consent.
See "Certain Relationships and Related Party Transactions Confidentiality and Restrictive Covenant Agreements."

We strive to maintain a work environment that reinforces our culture of collaboration, motivation and alignment of interests with investors.
If we do not continue to develop and implement the right processes and tools to manage our changing enterprise and maintain our culture, our
ability to compete successfully and achieve our business objectives could be impaired, which could negatively impact our business, financial
condition and results of operations.

Operational risks may disrupt our businesses, result in losses or limit our growth.

We rely heavily on our financial, accounting and other data processing systems. If any of these systems does not operate properly or is
disabled, we could suffer financial loss, a disruption of our businesses, liability to our funds, regulatory intervention or reputational damage. In
addition, we operate in businesses that are highly dependent on information systems and technology. Our information systems and technology
may not continue to be able to accommodate our growth, and the cost of maintaining such systems may increase from our current level. Such a
failure to accommodate growth, or an increase in costs related to such information systems, could have a material adverse effect on our business.
Furthermore, we depend on our principal offices in New York City, where most of our administrative personnel are located, for the continued
operation of our business. A disaster or a disruption in the infrastructure that supports our businesses, including a disruption involving electronic
communications or other services used by us or third parties with whom we conduct business, or directly affecting our principal offices, could
have a material adverse impact on our ability to continue to operate our business without interruption. Our disaster recovery programs may not
be sufficient to mitigate the harm that may result from such a disaster or disruption. In addition, insurance and other safeguards might only
partially reimburse us for our losses, if at all. Finally, we rely on third party service providers for certain aspects of our business, including for
certain information systems, technology and administration and compliance matters. Any interruption or deterioration in the performance of
these third parties could impair the quality of our and our funds' operations and could impact our reputation and adversely affect our businesses
and limit our ability to grow.
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The time and attention that our principals and other employees devote to assets that were not contributed to the KKR Group Partnerships as
part of the Transactions will not financially benefit the KKR Group Partnerships and may reduce the time and attention these individuals
devote to the KKR Group Partnerships' business.

As of December 31, 2009, the unrealized value of the investments held by the 1987 Fund, the 1993 Fund and the 1996 Fund totaled
$0.8 billion, or approximately 2% of our AUM. Because we believe the general partners of these funds will not receive meaningful proceeds
from further realizations, we did not acquire general partner interests in them in connection with the Transactions. We will, however, continue to
provide the funds with management and other services until their liquidation. While we will not receive meaningful fees for providing these
services, our principals and other employees will be required to devote a portion of their time and attention to the management of those entities.
The devotion of the time and attention of our principals and employees to those activities will not financially benefit the KKR Group
Partnerships and may reduce the time and attention they devote to the KKR Group Partnerships' business.

Our organizational documents do not limit our ability to enter into new lines of businesses, and we may expand into new investment
strategies, geographic markets and businesses, each of which may result in additional risks and uncertainties in our businesses.

We intend, to the extent that market conditions warrant, to seek to grow our businesses by increasing AUM in existing businesses, pursuing
new investment strategies, including investment opportunities in new asset classes, developing new types of investment structures and products
(such as managed accounts and structured products), and expanding into new geographic markets and businesses. We recently opened offices in
Mumbai, India, Seoul, Korea and Dubai, UAE, and also developed a capital markets business in the United States, Europe and Asia, which we
intend to grow and diversify. We may pursue growth through acquisitions of other investment management companies, acquisitions of critical
business partners or other strategic initiatives, which may include entering into new lines of business. In addition, we expect opportunities will
arise to acquire other alternative or traditional asset managers. To the extent we make strategic investments or acquisitions, undertake other
strategic initiatives or enter into a new line of business, we will face numerous risks and uncertainties, including risks associated with (i) the
required investment of capital and other resources; (ii) the possibility that we have insufficient expertise to engage in such activities profitably or
without incurring inappropriate amounts of risk; (iii) the possibility of diversion of management's attention from our core business; (iv) the
possibility of disruption of our ongoing business; (v) combining or integrating operational and management systems and controls; (vi) potential
increase in investor concentration; and (vii) the broadening of our geographic footprint, including the risks associated with conducting
operations in foreign jurisdictions. Entry into certain lines of business may subject us to new laws and regulations with which we are not
familiar, or from which we are currently exempt, and may lead to increased litigation and regulatory risk. If a new business generates
insufficient revenues or if we are unable to efficiently manage our expanded operations, our results of operations will be adversely affected. Our
strategic initiatives may include joint ventures, in which case we will be subject to additional risks and uncertainties in that we may be dependent
upon, and subject to liability, losses or reputational damage relating to, systems, controls and personnel that are not under our control.

Extensive regulation of our businesses affects our activities and creates the potential for significant liabilities and penalties. The possibility
of increased regulatory focus or legislative or regulatory changes could result in additional burdens on our business.

Our business is subject to extensive regulation. We are subject to regulation, including periodic examinations, by governmental and
self-regulatory organizations in the jurisdictions in which we operate around the world. Many of these regulators, including U.S. and foreign

government agencies and self-regulatory organizations, are empowered to conduct investigations and administrative proceedings
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that can result in fines, suspensions of personnel or other sanctions, including censure, the issuance of cease-and-desist orders or the suspension
or expulsion of applicable licenses and memberships. Even if an investigation or proceeding does not result in a sanction or the sanction imposed
against us or our personnel by a regulator were small in monetary amount, the adverse publicity relating to the investigation, proceeding or
imposition of these sanctions could harm our reputation and cause us to lose existing clients and investors or fail to gain new clients and
nvestors.

As a result of market disruption as well as highly publicized financial scandals, regulators and investors have exhibited concerns over the
integrity of the U.S. financial markets, and the businesses in which we operate both in the United States and outside the United States are likely
to be subject to further regulation. There has been an active debate both nationally and internationally over the appropriate extent of regulation
and oversight of private investment funds and their managers. There are proposals in the U.S. Congress and emanating from the U.S.
Department of the Treasury that would identify various kinds of private funds as being potentially systemically significant and subject to
increased reporting, oversight and regulation. Any changes in the regulatory framework applicable to our business may impose additional
expenses on us, require the attention of senior management or result in limitations in the manner in which our business is conducted. Moreover,
as calls for additional regulation have increased, there may be a related increase in regulatory investigations of the trading and other investment
activities of alternative asset management funds, including our funds. Such investigations may impose additional expenses on us, may require
the attention of senior management and may result in fines if any of our funds are deemed to have violated any regulations.

Recent legislative or regulatory proposals in the U.S. include designating a federal agency or representatives of several agencies as the
financial system's systemic risk regulator with authority to review the activities of all financial institutions, including alternative asset managers,
and to impose regulatory standards on any companies deemed to pose a threat to the financial health of the U.S. economy; authorizing federal
regulatory agencies to ban compensation arrangements at financial institutions that give employees incentives to engage in conduct that could
pose risks to the nation's financial system; granting the U.S. government resolution authority to take emergency measures with regard to
financial institutions that fall outside the existing resolution authority of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, including the authority to
place an institution into conservatorship or receivership; creating a new consumer financial protection agency or a consumer financial protection
bureau within the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or the U.S. Department of the Treasury; subjecting certain types of large financial
institutions to an incremental tax based on the amount of AUM or income and the type of financial services provided; and establishing new
ground rules for private equity investments in failed banks that make the acquisition of a failed bank less attractive for a private equity fund. In
addition, certain constituencies have recently been advocating for greater legislative and regulatory oversight of private equity firms and
transactions and to prevent pension funds from investing in private equity funds.

Members of the U.S. Senate have proposed the Hedge Fund Transparency Act, which would apply to private equity funds, venture capital
funds, real estate funds and other private investment vehicles with at least $50 million in assets under management. If enacted, the bill would
require such funds to register with the SEC, maintain books and records in accordance with SEC requirements and become subject to SEC
examinations and information requests in order to remain exempt from the substantive provisions of the Investment Company Act. The proposed
legislation also requires each fund to file annual disclosures, which would be made public, containing detailed information about the fund. The
proposed legislation also requires each fund to establish anti-money laundering programs. In addition, the Obama administration delivered
proposed legislation that, if enacted, would require advisors to hedge funds and other private pools of capital with over $30 million in assets
under management to register as Investment Advisors with the SEC under the Investment Advisers Act of 1940. The proposed legislation would
subject advisors to substantial regulatory reporting requirements and expand the SEC's examination and enforcement authority. In 2009, the U.S.
House of Representatives passed
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legislation that would empower federal regulators to prescribe regulations to prohibit any incentive-based payment arrangements that the
regulators determine encourage financial institutions to take risks that could threaten the soundness of the financial institutions or adversely
affect economic conditions and financial stability. At this time, we cannot predict what form this legislation would take, and what effect, if any,
it may have on our business or the markets in which we operate. It is impossible to determine the extent of the impact of any new laws,
regulations or initiatives that may be proposed, or whether any of the proposals will become law. If enacted, the proposed legislation could
negatively impact our funds in a number of ways, including increasing the funds' regulatory costs, imposing additional burdens on the funds'
staff, and potentially requiring the disclosure of sensitive information. In addition, we may be adversely affected by changes in the interpretation
or enforcement of existing laws and rules by these governmental authorities and self-regulatory organizations. Compliance with any new laws or
regulations could make compliance more difficult and expensive and affect the manner in which we conduct business.

On April 30, 2009, the European Commission published a draft of a proposed EU Directive on Alternative Investment Fund Managers, or
AIFM. The Directive, if adopted in the form proposed, would apply to all AIFMs operating within the EU with more than €100 million in assets
under management, including both hedge funds and private equity funds. AIFMs would be required to seek authorization from their home
jurisdiction within the EU, which would require the disclosure of such information as fair valuation of assets, investment strategy, and markets
in which investments are made on a regular basis. The Directive, if adopted, would also set a threshold for regulatory capital, allow regulators to
set a threshold for leverage and create reporting obligations to companies in which a controlling stake is held. Such rules could have a
particularly adverse effect on our investment businesses by among other things (i) imposing costly requirements to hire an independent valuation
firm based in the EU to value all of our funds' assets and to hire an independent depositary based in the EU to hold all of our investments,

(i1) imposing extensive disclosure obligations on our funds' portfolio companies, (iii) prohibiting us from marketing our investment funds to any
investors based in a EU country for three years after enactment of the directive and significantly restricting those marketing activities thereafter,
and (iv) potentially in effect restricting our funds' investments in companies based in EU countries. The Directive, if adopted in its current form,
could limit, both in absolute terms and in comparison to EU-based investment managers and funds, our operating flexibility, our ability to
market our funds, and our fund raising and investment opportunities, as well as expose us to conflicting regulatory requirements in the United
States and the EU.

We regularly rely on exemptions in the United States from various requirements of the Securities Act, the Exchange Act, the Investment
Company Act of 1940, or Investment Company Act, and the U.S. Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, or ERISA, in conducting
our asset management activities. These exemptions are sometimes highly complex and may in certain circumstances depend on compliance by
third parties whom we do not control. If for any reason these exemptions were to become unavailable to us, we could become subject to
regulatory action or third-party claims and our business could be materially and adversely affected. See " Risks Related to Our Organizational
Structure If we were deemed to be an "investment company" subject to regulation under the Investment Company Act, applicable restrictions
could make it impractical for us to continue our business as contemplated and could have a material adverse effect on our business." Moreover,
the requirements imposed by our regulators are designed primarily to ensure the integrity of the financial markets and to protect investors in our
funds and are not designed to protect holders of interests in our business. Consequently, these regulations often serve to limit our activities. In
addition, the regulatory environment in which our fund investors operate may affect our business. For example, changes in antitrust laws or the
enforcement of antitrust laws could affect the level of mergers and acquisitions activity, and changes in state laws may limit investment activities
of state pension plans. We may also be adversely affected as a result of new or revised legislation or regulations imposed by the
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SEC, other governmental regulatory authorities or self-regulatory organizations that supervise the financial markets.

Our operations are subject to regulation and supervision in a number of domestic and foreign jurisdictions, and the level of regulation and
supervision to which we are subject varies from jurisdiction to jurisdiction and is based on the type of business activity involved. See
"Business Regulation."

We are subject to substantial litigation risks and may face significant liabilities and damage to our professional reputation as a result of
litigation allegations and negative publicity.

The investment decisions we make in our asset management business and the activities of our investment professionals on behalf of our
portfolio companies may subject them and us to the risk of third-party litigation arising from investor dissatisfaction with the performance of our
funds, the activities of our portfolio companies and a variety of other litigation claims. See "Business Legal Proceedings." By way of example,
we, our funds and certain of our employees are each exposed to the risks of litigation relating to investment activities in our funds and actions
taken by the officers and directors (some of whom may be KKR employees) of portfolio companies, such as the risk of shareholder litigation by
other shareholders of public companies or holders of debt instruments of companies in which our funds have significant investments. We are
also exposed to risks of litigation or investigation in the event of any transactions that presented conflicts of interest that were not properly
addressed.

To the extent investors in our investment funds suffer losses resulting from fraud, gross negligence, willful misconduct or other similar
misconduct, investors may have remedies against us, our private equity funds, our principals or our affiliates under federal securities law and
state law. Investors in our funds do not have legal remedies against us, the general partners of our funds, our funds, our principals or our
affiliates solely based on their dissatisfaction with the investment performance of those funds. While the general partners and investment
advisors to our private equity funds, including their directors, officers, other employees and affiliates, are generally indemnified to the fullest
extent permitted by law with respect to their conduct in connection with the management of the business and affairs of our private equity funds,
such indemnity generally does not extend to actions determined to have involved fraud, gross negligence, willful misconduct or other similar
misconduct.

eft;font-size:10pt;">Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of effects from acquisitions:

Accounts receivable
(434,412
)

(367,188
)

Prepaid expenses and other assets
(69,101
)

(57,052
)

Accounts payable, merchant
197,346

126,056
Accounts payable, other, accrued expenses and other current liabilities

278,800

154,368
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Tax payable/receivable, net
(157,881
)

(190,948
)

Deferred merchant bookings
2,029,942

1,511,578

Deferred revenue
101,173

96,154

Net cash provided by operating activities
2,365,640

1,726,097

Investing activities:

Capital expenditures, including internal-use software and website development
(356,892
)

(379,981
)

Purchases of investments
(991,371
)

(20,446
)

Sales and maturities of investments
175,319

22,758

Net settlement of foreign currency forwards
7,218

(19,081
)

Acquisitions, net of cash acquired
(138,215
)

Other, net
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2,222

Net cash used in investing activities
(1,303,941
)

(394,528
)

Financing activities:

Payment of HomeAway Convertible Notes

(400,443
)

Purchases of treasury stock
(114,327
)

(328,311
)

Payment of dividends to stockholders
(84,685
)

(71,947
)

Proceeds from exercise of equity awards and employee stock purchase plan
136,979

69,777

Other, net
(18,605
)

(17,565
)

Net cash used in financing activities
(80,638
)

(748,489
)

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents
96,951

37,145

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
1,078,012

620,225

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period
1,796,811
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1,676,299
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

$
2,874,823

$
2,296,524

Supplemental cash flow information

Cash paid for interest

$
90,425

$

72,814

Income tax payments, net
107,480

89,972

See accompanying notes.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2017

(Unaudited)

Note 1 — Basis of Presentation

Description of Business

Expedia, Inc. and its subsidiaries provide travel products and services to leisure and corporate travelers in the United
States and abroad as well as various media and advertising offerings to travel and non-travel advertisers. These travel
products and services are offered through a diversified portfolio of brands including: Expedia.com®, Hotels.com®,
Hotwire.com™, Travelocity®, Expedia® Affiliate Network, Classic Vacations®, Expedia Local Expert®, Expedia®
CruiseShipCenters®, CarRentals.com™, Wotif Group, Orbitz®, CheapTickets®, ebookers®, SilverRail
Technologies, Inc., Egencia®, trivago®, and HomeAway®. In addition, many of these brands have related
international points of sale, including those as part of AirAsia-Expedia. We refer to Expedia, Inc. and its subsidiaries
collectively as “Expedia,” the “Company,” “us,” “we” and “our” in these consolidated financial statements.

Basis of Presentation

These accompanying financial statements present our results of operations, financial position and cash flows on a
consolidated basis. The unaudited consolidated financial statements include Expedia, Inc., our wholly-owned
subsidiaries, and entities we control, or in which we have a variable interest and are the primary beneficiary of
expected cash profits or losses. We have eliminated significant intercompany transactions and accounts.

We have prepared the accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States (“GAAP”) for interim financial reporting. We have included all
adjustments necessary for a fair presentation of the results of the interim period. These adjustments consist of normal
recurring items. Our interim unaudited consolidated financial statements are not necessarily indicative of results that
may be expected for any other interim period or for the full year. These interim unaudited consolidated financial
statements should be read in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial statements and related notes included
in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2016, previously filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission. Upon closing of its initial public offering on December 16, 2016, trivago became a separately
listed company on the Nasdaq Global Select Market and, therefore is subject to its own reporting and filing
requirements, which could result in possible differences that are not expected to be material to Expedia, Inc.
Accounting Estimates

We use estimates and assumptions in the preparation of our interim unaudited consolidated financial statements in
accordance with GAAP. Our estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as of the date of our interim unaudited consolidated financial statements.
These estimates and assumptions also affect the reported amount of net income or loss during any period. Our actual
financial results could differ significantly from these estimates. The significant estimates underlying our interim
unaudited consolidated financial statements include revenue recognition; recoverability of current and long-lived
assets, intangible assets and goodwill; income and transactional taxes, such as potential settlements related to
occupancy and excise taxes; loss contingencies; loyalty program liabilities; acquisition purchase price allocations;
stock-based compensation and accounting for derivative instruments.

Reclassifications

We have reclassified certain amounts related to our prior period results to conform to our current period presentation.
Seasonality

We generally experience seasonal fluctuations in the demand for our travel products and services. For example,
traditional leisure travel bookings are generally the highest in the first three quarters as travelers plan and book their
spring, summer and winter holiday travel. The number of bookings typically decreases in the fourth quarter. Because
revenue for most of our travel products, including merchant and agency hotel, is recognized when the travel takes
place rather than when it is booked, revenue typically lags bookings by several weeks or longer. The seasonal revenue
impact is exacerbated with respect to income by the nature of our variable cost of revenue and direct sales and
marketing costs, which we typically realize in closer alignment to booking volumes, and the more stable nature of our
fixed costs. Furthermore, operating profits for our primary advertising business, trivago, have typically been
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in the first half of the year as we aggressively market during the busy booking period
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for spring, summer and winter holiday travel. As a result on a consolidated basis, revenue and income are typically the
lowest in the first quarter and highest in the third quarter. The continued growth of our international operations,
advertising business or a change in our product mix, including the assimilation and growth of HomeAway, may
influence the typical trend of the seasonality in the future. We expect that as HomeAway continues its shift to more of
a transaction-based business model for vacation rental listings its seasonal trends may be somewhat more pronounced
than our other traditional leisure businesses.

Note 2 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Recent Accounting Policies Not Yet Adopted

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standard's Board ("FASB") issued an Accounting Standards Update ("ASU")
amending revenue recognition guidance and requiring more detailed disclosures to enable users of financial
statements to understand the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from contracts
with customers. In August 2015, the FASB issued an ASU deferring the effective date of the revenue standard so it
would be effective for annual and interim reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2017, with early adoption
prohibited before December 15, 2016. In addition, the FASB has also issued several amendments to the standard
which clarify certain aspects of the guidance, including principal versus agent considerations and identifying
performance obligations.

The guidance permits two methods of adoption: retrospectively to each prior reporting period presented (full
retrospective), or retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initially applying the guidance recognized at the date of
initial application (modified retrospective). We currently anticipate adopting the new guidance effective January 1,
2018 using the modified retrospective method, however, this decision is not final and is subject to the completion of
our analysis of the guidance.

While we are evaluating the full impact of the new standard on our consolidated financial statements, we have
determined the new guidance will not change our previous conclusions on net presentation. We have also determined
that the standard will impact our loyalty program accounting as we will no longer be allowed to use the incremental
cost method when recording the financial impact of rewards earned in conjunction with our traveler loyalty programs.
Instead, we will be required to re-value our liability using a relative fair value approach, which is anticipated to result
in a cumulative-effect adjustment to opening retained earnings, with an insignificant change to revenue on a
go-forward basis. In addition to the changes in our loyalty program accounting, the new guidance will likely result in
insignificant changes in the timing and classification of certain other revenue streams.

Through the date of adoption, we will continue to update our assessment of the effect that the new revenue guidance
will have on our consolidated financial statements, and will disclose further material effects, if any, when known.

In January 2016, the FASB issued new guidance related to accounting for equity investments, financial liabilities
under the fair value option, and the presentation and disclosure requirements for financial instruments. In addition, the
FASB clarified guidance related to the valuation allowance assessment when recognizing deferred tax assets resulting
from unrealized losses on available-for-sale debt securities. The new standard is effective for annual periods, and
interim periods within those annual periods, beginning after December 15, 2017. We do not expect the adoption of
this new guidance to have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements.

In February 2016, the FASB issued new guidance related to accounting and reporting guidelines for leasing
arrangements. The new guidance requires entities that lease assets to recognize assets and liabilities on the balance
sheet related to the rights and obligations created by those leases regardless of whether they are classified as finance or
operating leases. Consistent with current guidance, the recognition, measurement, and presentation of expenses and
cash flows arising from a lease primarily will depend on its classification as a finance or operating lease. The guidance
also requires new disclosures to help financial statement users better understand the amount, timing and uncertainty of
cash flows arising from leases. This guidance is effective for annual and interim reporting periods beginning after
December 15, 2018. Early adoption is permitted and should be applied using a modified retrospective approach. We
are in the process of evaluating the impact of adopting this new guidance on our consolidated financial statements.
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In June 2016, the FASB issued new guidance on the measurement of credit losses for financial assets measured at
amortized cost, which includes accounts receivable, and available-for-sale debt securities. The new guidance replaces
the existing incurred loss impairment model with an expected loss methodology, which will result in more timely
recognition of credit losses. This update is effective for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2019, including
interim periods within those annual periods. Early adoption is permitted for annual periods beginning after December
15, 2018, including interim periods within those annual periods. We are in the process of evaluating the impact of
adopting this new guidance on our consolidated financial statements.
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In August and November 2016, the FASB issued new guidance related to the statement of cash flows which clarifies
how companies present and classify certain cash receipts and cash payments as well as amends current guidance to
address the classification and presentation of changes in restricted cash in the statement of cash flows. The new
guidance is effective for annual periods, and interim periods within those annual periods, beginning after December
15, 2017 with early adoption permitted. We are in the process of evaluating the impact of adopting this new guidance
on our consolidated financial statements.

In October 2016, the FASB issued new guidance amending the accounting for income taxes associated with
intra-entity transfers of assets other than inventory. This accounting update, which is part of the FASB's simplification
initiative, is intended to reduce diversity in practice and the complexity of tax accounting, particularly for those
transfers involving intellectual property. This new guidance requires an entity to recognize the income tax
consequences of an intra-entity transfer of an asset other than inventory when the transfer occurs. The new standard is
effective for annual periods, and interim periods within those annual periods, beginning after December 15, 2017 with
early adoption permitted. We are in the process of evaluating the impact of adopting this new guidance on our
consolidated financial statements.

In January 2017, the FASB issued new guidance clarifying the definition of a business for determining whether
transactions should be accounted for as acquisitions (or disposals) of assets or businesses. The new standard is
effective for annual periods, and interim periods within those annual periods, beginning after December 15, 2017 with
early adoption permitted for transactions that occurred before the issuance date or effective date of the standard if the
transactions were not reported in financial statements that have been issued or made available for issuance. The
standard must be applied prospectively. Upon adoption, the standard will impact how we assess acquisitions (or
disposals) of assets or businesses.

In January 2017, the FASB issued new guidance simplifying subsequent goodwill measurement by eliminating Step 2
from the goodwill impairment test. Under this update, an entity should perform its annual, or interim, goodwill
impairment test by comparing the fair value of a reporting unit with its carrying amount. An entity should recognize
an impairment charge for the amount by which the carrying amount exceeds the reporting unit’s fair value; however,
the loss recognized should not exceed the total amount of goodwill allocated to that reporting unit. The new standard
is effective for annual periods, and interim periods within those annual periods, beginning after December 15, 2019
with early adoption permitted for annual goodwill impairment tests performed after January 1, 2017. The standard
must be applied prospectively. Upon adoption, the standard will impact how we assess goodwill for impairment. We
are currently considering our timing of adoption.

Note 3 — Acquisitions and Other Investments

On June 23, 2017, we completed our acquisition of a majority stake in a leading rail technology distributor for total
consideration of $148 million, which included cash paid of $138 million. The acquisition enables us to play a more
active role in bringing rail supply online, while working closely with rail carriers. As a result of the acquisition, we
acquired net assets of $15 million, including redeemable non-controlling interest of $8 million, as well as recorded
$100 million of goodwill, $47 million of intangible assets with definite lives with a weighted average amortization of
5.7 years and a deferred tax liability of $14 million. The redeemable non-controlling interest was recorded in other
long-term liabilities in our consolidated balance sheet. The goodwill recorded is not expected to be deductible for tax
purposes. The purchase price allocation was based on a preliminary valuation of the assets acquired and liabilities
assumed and is subject to revision. The results of operations were immaterial from the transaction close date through
June 30, 2017. Pro forma results have not been presented as such pro forma financial information would not be
materially different from historical results.

Subsequent Event

On July 27, 2017, we announced that Expedia and Traveloka Holding Limited ("Traveloka"), a Southeast Asian
online travel company, have expanded our partnership to include deeper cooperation on hotel supply and that we
made a $350 million cost investment in Traveloka.
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Note 4 — Fair Value Measurements
Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of June 30, 2017 are classified using the
fair value hierarchy in the table below:

Total Level 1 Level 2

(In thousands)

Assets

Cash equivalents:

Money market funds $90,863 $90,863 $—
Time deposits 741,682 — 741,682
Restricted cash:

Time deposits 2,362 — 2,362
Investments:

Time deposits 857,285 — 857,285
Corporate debt securities 55,754 — 55,754
Total assets $1,747,946 $90,863 $1,657,083
Liabilities

Derivatives:

Foreign currency forward contracts $2,532 $— $2.,532

Financial assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of December 31, 2016 are classified using the fair value
hierarchy in the table below:

Total Level 1 Level2

(In thousands)

Assets

Cash equivalents:

Money market funds $113,955 $113,955 $—
Time deposits 299,585 — 299,585
Investments:

Time deposits 24,576 — 24,576
Corporate debt securities 64,227 — 64,227
Total assets $502,343 $113,955 $388,388
Liabilities

Derivatives:

Foreign currency forward contracts $4,402  $— $4.,402

We classify our cash equivalents and investments within Level 1 and Level 2 as we value our cash equivalents and
investments using quoted market prices or alternative pricing sources and models utilizing market observable inputs.
Valuation of the foreign currency forward contracts is based on foreign currency exchange rates in active markets, a
Level 2 input.

As of June 30, 2017 and December 31, 2016, our cash and cash equivalents consisted primarily of prime institutional
money market funds with maturities of three months or less, time deposits as well as bank account balances.

We invest in investment grade corporate debt securities, all of which are classified as available for sale. As of June 30,
2017, we had $49 million of short-term and $7 million of long-term available for sale investments and the amortized
cost basis of the investments approximated their fair value with gross unrealized gains and gross unrealized losses
both of less than $1 million. As of December 31, 2016, we had $48 million of short-term and $16 million of long-term
available for sale investments and the amortized cost basis of the investments approximated their fair value with both
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gross unrealized gains and gross unrealized losses of less than $1 million.

We also hold time deposit investments with financial institutions. Time deposits with original maturities of less than
three months are classified as cash equivalents and those with remaining maturities of less than one year are classified
within short-term investments. Additionally, we have time deposits classified as restricted cash for certain traveler
deposits.
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Derivative instruments are carried at fair value on our consolidated balance sheets. We use foreign currency forward
contracts to economically hedge certain merchant revenue exposures, foreign denominated liabilities related to certain
of our loyalty programs and our other foreign currency-denominated operating liabilities. Our goal in managing our
foreign exchange risk is to reduce, to the extent practicable, our potential exposure to the changes that exchange rates
might have on our earnings, cash flows and financial position. Our foreign currency forward contracts are typically
short-term and, as they do not qualify for hedge accounting treatment, we classify the changes in their fair value in
other, net. As of June 30, 2017, we were party to outstanding forward contracts hedging our liability and revenue
exposures with a total net notional value of $2.4 billion. We had a net forward liability of $3 million and $4 million
recorded in accrued expenses and other current liabilities as of June 30, 2017 and December 31, 2016. We recorded
$14 million and $(20) million in net gains (losses) from foreign currency forward contracts during the three months
ended June 30, 2017 and 2016 as well as $9 million and $(48) million in net gains (losses) during the six months
ended June 30, 2017 and 2016.
Assets Measured at Fair Value on a Non-recurring Basis
Our non-financial assets, such as goodwill, intangible assets and property and equipment, as well as equity and cost
method investments, are adjusted to fair value only when an impairment charge is recognized. Such fair value
measurements are based predominately on Level 3 inputs.
Cost Method Investments. As of both June 30, 2017 and December 31, 2016, the carrying values of our investments
accounted for under the cost method totaled $323 million. We periodically evaluate the recoverability of each
investment and record a write-down to fair value if a decline in value is determined to be other-than-temporary.
During the three and six months ended June 30, 2017, we recorded a $5 million and $6 million other-than-temporary
impairment related to cost method investments. The remaining fair value of the impaired investments was
approximately $10 million as of June 30, 2017. During the six months ended June 30, 2016, we recorded a $7 million
other-than-temporary impairment related to a cost method investment.
Note 5 — Debt
The following table sets forth our outstanding debt:

June 30, December 31,

2017 2016

(In thousands)
7.456% senior notes due 2018 $500,000 $ 500,000
5.95% senior notes due 2020 747,424 747,020
2.5% (€650 million) senior notes due 2022 737,880 677,503
4.5% senior notes due 2024 494,814 494,472
5.0% senior notes due 2026 740,828 740,341
Long-term debt() $3,220,946 $ 3,159,336

(1)Net of applicable discounts and debt issuance costs.

Long-term Debt

Our $500 million in registered senior unsecured notes outstanding at June 30, 2017 are due in August 2018 and bear
interest at 7.456% (the “7.456% Notes”). Interest is payable semi-annually in February and August of each year. At any
time Expedia may redeem the 7.456% Notes at a redemption price of 100% of the principal plus accrued interest, plus

a “make-whole” premium, in whole or in part.

Our $750 million in registered senior unsecured notes outstanding at June 30, 2017 are due in August 2020 and bear
interest at 5.95% (the “5.95% Notes”). The 5.95% Notes were issued at 99.893% of par resulting in a discount, which is
being amortized over their life. Interest is payable semi-annually in February and August of each year. We may

redeem the 5.95% Notes at a redemption price of 100% of the principal plus accrued interest, plus a “make-whole”
premium, in whole or in part.
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Our Euro 650 million in registered senior unsecured notes outstanding at June 30, 2017 are due in June 2022 and bear
interest at 2.5% (the “2.5% Notes”). The 2.5% Notes were issued at 99.525% of par resulting in a discount, which is
being amortized over their life. Interest is payable annually in arrears in June of each year. We may redeem the 2.5%
Notes at our option, at whole or in part, at any time or from time to time. If we elect to redeem the 2.5% Notes prior to
March 3, 2022, we may redeem them at a specified “make-whole” premium. If we elect to redeem the 2.5% Notes on or
after March 3, 2022, we
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may redeem them at a redemption price of 100% of the principal plus accrued and unpaid interest. Subject to certain
limited exceptions, all payments of interest and principal for the 2.5% Notes will be made in Euros.
The aggregate principal value of the 2.5% Notes is designated as a hedge of our net investment in certain Euro
functional currency subsidiaries. The notes are measured at Euro to U.S. Dollar exchange rates at each balance sheet
date and transaction gains or losses due to changes in rates are recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income
(loss) (““OCI”). The Euro-denominated net assets of these subsidiaries are translated into U.S. Dollars at each balance
sheet date, with effects of foreign currency changes also reported in accumulated OCI. Since the notional amount of
the recorded Euro-denominated debt is less than the notional amount of our net investment, we do not expect to incur
any ineffectiveness on this hedge.
Our $500 million in registered senior unsecured notes outstanding at June 30, 2017 are due in August 2024 and bear
interest at 4.5% (the “4.5% Notes”). The 4.5% Notes were issued at 99.444% of par resulting in a discount, which is
being amortized over their life. Interest is payable semi-annually in February and August of each year. We may
redeem the 4.5% Notes at our option at any time in whole or from time to time in part. If we elect to redeem the 4.5%
Notes prior to May 15, 2024, we may redeem them at a redemption price of 100% of the principal plus accrued
interest, plus a “make-whole” premium. If we elect to redeem the 4.5% Notes on or after May 15, 2024, we may redeem
them at a redemption price of 100% of the principal plus accrued interest.
Our $750 million in registered senior unsecured notes outstanding at June 30, 2017 are due in February 2026 and bear
interest at 5.0% (the “5.0% Notes™). The 5.0% Notes were issued at 99.535% of par resulting in a discount, which is
being amortized over their life. Interest is payable semi-annually in arrears in February and August of each year. We
may redeem the 5.0% Notes at our option at any time in whole or from time to time in part. If we elect to redeem the
5.0% Notes prior to November 12, 2025, we may redeem them at a redemption price of 100% of the principal plus
accrued interest, plus a “make-whole” premium. If we elect to redeem the 5.0% Notes on or after November 12, 2025,
we may redeem them at a redemption price of 100% of the principal plus accrued interest.
The 7.456%, 5.95%, 4.5%, 2.5% and 5.0% Notes (collectively the “Notes”) are senior unsecured obligations issued by
Expedia and guaranteed by certain domestic Expedia subsidiaries. The Notes rank equally in right of payment with all
of our existing and future unsecured and unsubordinated obligations of Expedia and the guarantor subsidiaries. For
further information, see Note 12 — Guarantor and Non-Guarantor Supplemental Financial Information. In addition, the
Notes include covenants that limit our ability to (i) create certain liens, (ii) enter into sale/leaseback transactions and
(iii) merge or consolidate with or into another entity or transfer substantially all of our assets. Accrued interest related
to the Notes was $55 million and $63 million as of June 30, 2017 and December 31, 2016. The 5.95%, 4.5%, 2.5%
and 5.0% Notes are redeemable in whole or in part, at the option of the holders thereof, upon the occurrence of certain
change of control triggering events at a purchase price in cash equal to 101% of the principal plus accrued and unpaid
interest.
The following table sets forth the approximate fair value of our outstanding debt, which is based on quoted market
prices in less active markets (Level 2 inputs):

June 30, December 31,

2017 2016

(In thousands)
7.456% senior notes due 2018 $530,000 $ 541,000
5.95% senior notes due 2020 823,000 823,000
2.5% (€650 million) senior notes due 20220 788,000 718,000
4.5% senior notes due 2024 527,000 511,000
5.0% senior notes due 2026 821,000 782,000

(1) Approximately 689 million Euro as of June 30, 2017 and 682 million Euro as of December 31, 2016.
Credit Facility
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Expedia, Inc. maintains a $1.5 billion unsecured revolving credit facility with a group of lenders, which is
unconditionally guaranteed by certain domestic Expedia subsidiaries that are the same as under the Notes and expires
in February 2021. As of June 30, 2017 and December 31, 2016, we had no revolving credit facility borrowings
outstanding. The facility bears interest based on the Company’s credit ratings, with drawn amounts bearing interest at
LIBOR plus 137.5 basis points and the commitment fee on undrawn amounts at 17.5 basis points as of June 30, 2017.
The facility contains covenants including maximum leverage and minimum interest coverage ratios.

The amount of stand-by letters of credit (“LOC”) issued under the facility reduces the credit amount available. As
June 30, 2017 and December 31, 2016, there were $15 million and $19 million of outstanding stand-by LOCs issued
under the facility.
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In addition, one of our international subsidiaries maintains a Euro 50 million uncommitted credit facility, which is
guaranteed by Expedia, Inc., that may be terminated at any time by the lender. As of June 30, 2017 and December 31,
2016, there were no borrowings outstanding.

Note 6 — Stockholders’ Equity

Dividends on our Common Stock

The Executive Committee, acting on behalf of the Board of Directors, declared the following dividends during the
periods presented:

Declaration Date Il?elzlslf;lri Record Date Eﬁt?é(ﬁl:;?llgsl; Payment Date
Six Months Ended June 30, 2017

February 7, 2017 $ 028 March9,2017 $ 42,247 March 30, 2017
April 26, 2017 0.28 May 25,2017 42,438 June 15, 2017
Six Months Ended June 30, 2016

February 8, 2016 0.24 March 10, 2016 36,174 March 30, 2016
April 26, 2016 0.24 May 26,2016 35,773 June 16, 2016

In addition, in July 2017, the Executive Committee, acting on behalf of the Board of Directors, declared a quarterly
cash dividend of $0.30 per share of outstanding common stock payable on September 14, 2017 to stockholders of
record as of the close of business on August 24, 2017. Future declarations of dividends are subject to final
determination by our Board of Directors.
Share Repurchases
In February 2015, the Executive Committee, acting on behalf of the Board of Directors, authorized a repurchase of up
to 10 million shares of our common stock. There is no fixed termination date for the repurchases. During the six
months ended June 30, 2017, we repurchased, through open market transactions, 0.8 million shares under this
authorization for the total cost of $102 million, excluding transaction costs, representing an average repurchase price
of $130.95 per share. As of June 30, 2017, 6.5 million shares remain authorized for repurchase under the 2015
authorization. Subsequent to June 30, 2017, we repurchased an additional 0.2 million shares for a total cost of $33
million, excluding transaction costs, representing an average price of $150.37 per share.
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)
The balance for each class of accumulated other comprehensive loss as of June 30, 2017 and December 31, 2016 is as
follows:

June 30, December 31,

2017 2016

(In thousands)
Foreign currency translation adjustments, net of tax(!) $(188,364) $(280,426 )
Net unrealized gain (loss) on available for sale securities, net of tax 24 27
Accumulated other comprehensive loss $(188,340) $ (280,399 )

Foreign currency translation adjustments, net of tax, include foreign currency transaction losses at June 30, 2017 of
$(22) million ($(35) million before tax) and gains at December 31, 2016 of $16 million ($25 million before tax)
associated with our 2.5% Notes. The 2.5% Notes are Euro-denominated debt designated as hedges of certain of our
Euro-denominated net assets. See Note 5 — Debt for more information. The remaining balance in currency
translation adjustments excludes income taxes as a result of our current intention to indefinitely reinvest the
earnings of our international subsidiaries outside of the United States.

ey
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Note 7 — Earnings Per Share
The following table presents our basic and diluted earnings per share:

Three months Six months ended
ended

June 30, June 30,
2017 2016 2017 2016
(In thousands, except per share data)

Net income (loss) attributable to Expedia, Inc. $56,689 $31,649 $(29,433) $(76,940)
Earnings (loss) per share attributable to Expedia, Inc. available to common

stockholders:

Basic $0.37 $0.21 $(0.19 ) $(0.51 )
Diluted 0.36 0.21 0.19 ) .51 )
Weighted average number of shares outstanding:

Basic 151,582 149,552 151,060 150,332
Dilutive effect of:

Options to purchase common stock 4,845 3,753 — —

Other dilutive securities 606 227 — —
Diluted 157,033 153,532 151,060 150,332

Basic earnings per share is calculated using our weighted-average outstanding common shares. The earnings per share
amounts are the same for common stock and Class B common stock because the holders of each class are legally
entitled to equal per share distributions whether through dividends or in liquidation.

Diluted earnings per share is calculated using our weighted-average outstanding common shares including the dilutive
effect of stock awards as determined under the treasury stock method. In periods when we recognize a net loss, we
exclude the impact of outstanding stock awards from the diluted loss per share calculation as their inclusion would
have an antidilutive effect. For the three and six months ended June 30, 2017, approximately 4 million and 21 million
of outstanding stock awards were excluded from the calculations of diluted earnings per share attributable to common
stockholders because their effect would have been antidilutive. For the three and six months ended June 30, 2016,
approximately 12 million and 22 million of outstanding stock awards have been excluded from the calculations of
diluted earnings (loss) per share attributable to common stockholders because their effect would have been
antidilutive.

Note 8 — Restructuring and Related Reorganization Charges

In connection with activities to centralize and optimize certain operations as well as migrate technology platforms in
the prior year, primarily related to previously disclosed acquisitions, we recognized $12 million and $40 million in
restructuring and related reorganization charges during the six months ended June 30, 2017 and 2016. Based on
current plans, which are subject to change, we expect to incur approximately $10 million during the remainder of
2017 related to these integrations and estimates do not include any possible future acquisition integrations. Accrued
restructure liabilities were $17 million and $18 million as of June 30, 2017 and December 31, 2016.

Note 9 — Income Taxes

We determine our provision for income taxes for interim periods using an estimate of our annual effective tax rate. We
record any changes affecting the estimated annual tax rate in the interim period in which the change occurs, including
discrete tax items.

For the three months ended June 30, 2017, we recorded a 5.3% tax rate expense on pre-tax income, which was driven
by discrete income tax items specifically the recognition of excess tax benefits related to share-based payments. The
effective tax rate for the three months ended June 30, 2016 was a 149.3% tax rate benefit measured against a pre-tax
loss, and was driven by discrete income tax items including the recognition of excess tax benefits related to
share-based payments resulting from the adoption of new accounting guidance for share-based payments as of January
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1, 2016.
For the six months ended June 30, 2017, we recorded a 58.6% tax rate benefit on pre-tax loss, which was driven by

discrete income tax items specifically the recognition of excess tax benefits related to share-based payments. The
effective tax rate for the six months ended June 30, 2016 was a 42.4% tax rate benefit measured against a pre-tax loss,
and was due to discrete income tax items including release of a valuation allowance for net operating losses in the first

quarter of 2016, as well
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as recognition of excess tax benefits related to share-based payments resulting from the adoption of new accounting
guidance for share-based payments as of January 1, 2016.

We are subject to taxation in the United States and various other state and foreign jurisdictions. We are under
examination by the Internal Revenue Service ("IRS") for our 2009 through 2013 tax years. Our 2014 and subsequent
years remain open to examination by the IRS. We do not anticipate a significant impact to our gross unrecognized tax
benefits within the next 12 months related to these years. During first quarter of 2017, the IRS issued proposed
adjustments relating to transfer pricing with our foreign subsidiaries for our 2009 to 2010 audit cycle. The proposed
adjustments would increase our U.S. taxable income by $105 million, which would result in federal tax expense of
approximately $37 million, subject to interest. We do not agree with the position of the IRS and will formally protest
the IRS position.

Note 10 — Commitments and Contingencies

Legal Proceedings

In the ordinary course of business, we are a party to various lawsuits. Management does not expect these lawsuits to
have a material impact on the liquidity, results of operations, or financial condition of Expedia. We also evaluate other
potential contingent matters, including value-added tax, excise tax, sales tax, transient occupancy or accommodation
tax and similar matters. We do not believe that the aggregate amount of liability that could be reasonably possible
with respect to these matters would have a material adverse effect on our financial results; however, litigation is
inherently uncertain and the actual losses incurred in the event that our legal proceedings were to result in unfavorable
outcomes could have a material adverse effect on our business and financial performance.

Litigation Relating to Occupancy Taxes. Ninety-five lawsuits have been filed by or against cities, counties and states
involving hotel occupancy and other taxes. Seventeen are currently active. These lawsuits are in various stages and we
continue to defend against the claims made in them vigorously. With respect to the principal claims in these matters,
we believe that the statutes or ordinances at issue do not apply to the services we provide and, therefore, that we do
not owe the taxes that are claimed to be owed. We believe that the statutes or ordinances at issue generally impose
occupancy and other taxes on entities that own, operate or control hotels (or similar businesses) or furnish or provide
hotel rooms or similar accommodations. To date, forty-one of these lawsuits have been dismissed. Some of these
dismissals have been without prejudice and, generally, allow the governmental entity or entities to seek administrative
remedies prior to pursuing further litigation. Twenty-seven dismissals were based on a finding that we and the other
defendants were not subject to the local hotel occupancy tax ordinance or that the local government lacked standing to
pursue their claims. As a result of this litigation and other attempts by certain jurisdictions to levy such taxes, we have
established a reserve for the potential settlement of issues related to hotel occupancy taxes, consistent with applicable
accounting principles and in light of all current facts and circumstances, in the amount of $57 million and $71 million
as of June 30, 2017 and December 31, 2016. Our settlement reserve is based on our best estimate of probable losses
and the ultimate resolution of these contingencies may be greater or less than the liabilities recorded. An estimate for a
reasonably possible loss or range of loss in excess of the amount reserved cannot be made. Changes to the settlement
reserve are included within legal reserves, occupancy tax and other in the consolidated statements of operations.

In addition, we have been audited by the state of Colorado. The state has issued assessments for claimed tax, interest
and penalty in the approximate amount of $23 million for the periods December 1, 1999 through December 31, 2011.
We do not agree with these assessments and have filed protests.

Pay-to-Play. Certain jurisdictions may assert that we are required to pay any assessed taxes prior to being allowed to
contest or litigate the applicability of the ordinances. This prepayment of contested taxes is referred to as “pay-to-play.’
Payment of these amounts is not an admission that we believe we are subject to such taxes and, even when such
payments are made, we continue to defend our position vigorously. If we prevail in the litigation, for which a
pay-to-play payment was made, the jurisdiction collecting the payment will be required to repay such amounts and
also may be required to pay interest.
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Hawaii (General Excise Tax). During 2013, the Expedia companies were required to “pay-to-play” and paid a total of
$171 million in advance of litigation relating to general excise taxes for merchant model hotel reservations in the State
of Hawaii. In September 2015, following a ruling by the Hawaii Supreme Court, the State of Hawaii refunded the
Expedia companies $132 million of the original “pay-to-play” amount. Orbitz also received a similar refund of $22
million from the State of Hawaii in September 2015. The amount paid, net of refunds, by the Expedia companies and
Orbitz to the State of Hawaii in satisfaction of past general excise taxes on their services for merchant model hotel
reservations was $44 million. The parties reached a settlement relating to Orbitz merchant model hotel tax liabilities,
and on October 5, 2016, the Expedia companies paid the State of Hawaii for the tax years 2012 through 2015. The
Expedia companies and Orbitz have now resolved all assessments by the State of Hawaii for merchant model hotel
taxes through 2015.
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The Department of Taxation also issued final assessments for general excise taxes against the Expedia companies,
including Orbitz, dated December 23, 2015 for the time period 2000 to 2014 for hotel and car rental revenue for
“agency model” transactions. Those assessments are currently under review in the Hawaii tax courts.

Final assessments by the Hawaii Department of Taxation for general exercise taxes against the Expedia companies,
including Orbitz, relating to merchant car rental transactions during the years 2000 to 2014 are also under review in
the Hawaii tax courts. With respect to merchant model car rental transactions at issue for the tax years 2000 through
2013, the Hawaii tax court held on August 5, 2016 that general excise tax is due on the online travel companies’
services to facilitate car rentals. The court further ruled that for merchant model car rentals in Hawaii, the online travel
companies are required to pay general excise tax on the total amount paid by consumers, with no credit for tax
amounts already remitted by car rental companies to the State of Hawaii for tax years 2000 through 2013, thus
resulting in a double tax on the amount paid by consumers to car rental companies for the rental of the vehicle. The
court, however, ruled that when car rentals are paid for as part of a vacation package, tax is only due once on the
amount paid by consumers to the car rental company for the rental of the vehicle. In addition, the court ruled that the
online travel companies are required to pay interest and certain penalties on the amounts due. On April 25, 2017, the
court entered a final judgment. On May 15, 2017, the Expedia companies paid under protest the full amount claimed
due, or approximately $16.7 million, as a condition of appeal. The parties have filed notices of cross-appeal. The
Hawaii tax court’s decision did not resolve “merchant model” car rental transactions for the tax year 2014, which also
remain under review.

San Francisco (Occupancy Tax). During 2009, Expedia companies were required to “pay-to-play” and paid $48 million
in advance of litigation relating to occupancy tax proceedings with the city of San Francisco and, in May 2014, the
Expedia companies paid an additional
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